
Meeting of:  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date: Tuesday, 24th March, 2020
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1  Apologies 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  Declarations of Interest 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3  Urgent Items of Business 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4  Items for Exclusion of Public and Press 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

5  Minutes 

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held 11th February 2020.

6  Draft Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 3 - 101

Public Document Pack



To scrutinise proposals for a draft RBC/CCG strategy

7  1st  & 2nd Quarter Corporate Complaints 102 - 113

A summary of corporate complaints and compliments received during 
the first and second quarters of 2019/20.

8  Townships Plan 2020-2022 114 - 121

To scrutinise the Township Plan 2020 - 2022

9  Health Related Absence Q1 & Q2 2019/2020 122 - 125

To consider health related absences in the authority during the first two 
quarter periods of 2019/2020.

10  Finance Update Report P10 126 - 138

To scrutinise the Council’s forecast 2019/20 financial position, as at 
the end of January 2020.

11  Work Programme 2019/2020 139 - 143

To consider the Committee’s Work Programme 2019/2020

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor David Bamford           Councillor Malcolm Boriss 
Councillor Michael Holly             Councillor Peter Joinson 
Councillor Amna Mir                   Councillor Kallum Nolan 
Councillor Shaun O'Neill            Councillor Liam O'Rourke 
Councillor Faisal Rana               Councillor Linda Robinson 
Councillor Elsie Wraighte

For more information about this meeting, please contact: 
Peter Thompson Committees and Constitutional Services 
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 
Telephone – 01706 924715 
E-mail – peter.thompson@rchdale.gov.uk 

mailto:peter.thompson@rchdale.gov.uk


1

Report to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny

Date of Meeting: 24/03/2020
Portfolio

Lead Member

Portfolio Holder of Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny
Councillor Michael Holly

Report Author: - Samina Arfan, NHS HMRCCG Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion Strategic Lead

Document: Public

Draft Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy
2020-2024

Executive Summary
This report provides an update on the development of the proposed Joint Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2020-24 and its role in helping satisfy Rochdale 
Borough Council’s and NHS Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical 
Commissioning Group’s obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section 149 
of the Equality Act 2010). 

 

1.1

1.2

This report provides an update on the development of the draft Joint Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion Strategy (Joint EDI Strategy 2020-24) and its role in 
helping satisfy both NHS HMR CCG and Rochdale Borough Council obligations 
under the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED: section 149 of the Equality Act 
2010).

The content of this report is as follow:    
 Update Report: Proposed Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 

(2020-24);
 Appendix 1: Proposed Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 

(2020-24).
 Appendix 2: Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Engagement and 

Consultation Report
Recommendation

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



2

2.1 It is recommended that the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny:

 Note the contents of the report and strategy;
 Provide any feedback and comments;                                                                                  
 Note the next steps outlined in the report for engagement with 

stakeholders and governance leading to the final version of the Joint 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2020-24 being taken to the 
Governing Body on the 20th March 2020 and Rochdale Borough 
Council Cabinet 31st March 2020 for formal adoption by both 
organisations.

 Note that the CCG governance route for the Joint Strategy 2020-24 
will be completed on the 20th March 2020, where it will be presented 
for ratification. Chairs Actions has been requested from the CCG 
Governing Body should they be required, to endorse any further 
changes that may be required following the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny meeting.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 This is the first joint EDI strategy of NHS Heywood Middleton and Rochdale 
Clinical Commissioning Group (NHS HMRCCG) and Rochdale Borough Council 
(RBC). Previously both organisations had their own equality and diversity 
strategies which have now expired

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

NHS HMRCCG and RBC are obligated to operate within the legal framework of 
the Equality Act 2010; PSED; Human Rights Act 1998 and the Health and 
Social Care Act 2012.

The table below provides a summary of our legal and mandatory requirements:

Page 4



3

4.3

4.4

4.5 

4.6

The table above illustrates the PSED as laid out in section 149 of the Equality 
Act 2010 and the requirements public authorities must do in the exercise of its 
functions. It also provides an overview of other legislative requirements and 
mandatory standards and frameworks applicable to NHS HMRCCG, Health and 
Social Care and good practice for Local authorities; which support public bodies 
to meet the PSED.

In addition, the Equality Act 2006 gave the Equality and Human Rights 
Commission (EHRC) the duty to report regularly on the extent to which equality 
and human rights are improving in Britain. In their 2015 report on the state of 
the nation and 2018 review, eight key priorities where identified,  that are 
needed to tackle existing discrimination (listed below) and the ongoing 
challenges that must be addressed in respect of access to justice, hate crime 
and sexual harassment. Also increased inequalities in child poverty, socio 
economic disadvantage, large gaps between the experiences and outcomes of 
disabled people and some ethnic minorities and the population. Improve the 
evidence and the ability to assess how fair society is. 

 Improve the evidence and the ability to assess how fair society is. 
 Raise standards and close attainment gaps in education, 
 Encourage fair recruitment, development and reward in employment. 
 Support improved living conditions in cohesive communities. 
 Encourage democratic participation and ensure access to justice. 
 Improve access to mental health services and support for those 

experiencing (or at risk of experiencing) poor mental health. 
 Prevent abuse, neglect and ill-treatment in care and detention. 
 Tackle targeted harassment and abuse of people who share protected 

characteristic.

The reports briefly discussed above (point 4.4) along with the recent Health 
Equity in England; Marmot Review ‘10 Years On’ (February 2020); highlights 
how life expectancy has stalled for the first time in at least 120 years and the 
impact of socio economic disadvantage on infant and child health. This all 
presents the enormity of the challenges public bodies face in addressing 
complex inequalities and discrimination for all their residents with constraint 
resources, which align with priorities in our Locality Plan.

As listed in the table above the main improvement framework mandated for the 
NHS including the CCG’s is the Equality Delivery System (EDS) which has 4 
Goals (listed below):

1. Better health outcomes
2. Improved patient access and experience
3. A representative and supported workforce
4. Inclusive leadership.

Page 5

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/is-britain-fairer-2018-executive-summary-pre-lay.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/is-britain-fairer-2018-executive-summary-pre-lay.pdf


4

4.7

4.8

4.7

4.8

NHS organisations are rated by their stakeholders against these goals as: 
underdeveloped, developed, achieving and excelling. Since October 2013 HMR 
CCG has measured its performance against goals 2 and 4 and was rated as 
achieving. 

The NHS Long Term Plan places a greater focus on place-based approaches 
and integration of health and social care. The trajectory is for the NHS 
mandated standards listed in the table above (point 4.2) to be incorporated 
within a more health and social care, placed based paradigm.  

The Equality Framework for Local Government (EFLG), although not mandated 
for local authorities, is like the NHS EDS by providing an improvement 
framework to help councils to meet the equality duties by ensuring that a robust 
evidence base informs local decisions. The EFLG comprises of five 
performance areas:

1. Knowing your communities
2. Leadership, partnership and organisational commitment
3. Involving your communities
4. Responsive services and customer care
5. A skilled and committed workforce.

Both the NHS EDS and EFLG ensure that public bodies can demonstrate that 
equalities is at the heart of its work. The Joint Strategy and the Equality 
Objectives ensures both the CCG and RBC meet the needs of its communities 
and staff while ensuring legislative, mandated standards and good practice 
improvement frameworks can be evidenced and met.

At a Greater Manchester level, more focus is galvanising within Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) and Greater Manchester Health and 
Social Care Partnership (GMHSCP) in addressing equalities. and is reflected in 
structures that have been established including:

 GMCA Equalities Advisory Groups for: Women and Young Girls, 
Disabled People, LGBTQ and more recently 2 panels for Race and Faith

 GMCA Apprenticeships programme with a focus on underserved 
communities (BAME and Disability) 

 GMHSCP Workforce Race Equality Steering Group with a GM Public 
Sector Focus 

 GMHSCP Pride in Practice – focus on primary care services
 GMHSCP Inclusion and Wellbeing Partnership Board- main role is to 

encourage and champion equality, diversity and inclusion through 
engagement across GM and within localities

 Several GM commissioning workstreams with a focus on equalities 
including: Mental Health, Dementia, Cancer, Smoking etc

 
This focus anticipates that localities, including Rochdale borough, are focusing 
on the addressing inequalities raised within their local plans. 

Page 6



5

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

As outlined above (point 3.1), NHS HMR CCG and RBC previously set out their 
equality objectives through their own organisational strategies and policies. A 
new set of joint equality objectives have now been developed which are listed 
below (point 4.10) and detailed in Appendix 1: Joint EDI Strategy (2020-24). 
This ensures we continue to fulfil our obligation to publish our objectives at 
intervals of no more than four years from the date of first publication.

Through a process of assessment, review and engagement with stakeholder 
five high level Equality Objectives 2020-24 have been themed with the acronym 
‘READI’, further details about the equality objectives are detailed in Appendix 
1.

• Reduce inequalities and improve outcomes
• Embed EDI in our way of working and meet our statutory and 

mandatory requirements 
• Actively consult, engage, involve and communicate with our 

communities
• Develop inclusive leadership, workforce and culture
• Improve access to information services and data collection 

and usage

The proposed equality objectives listed above are strategically aligned to the 
mandatory and good practice drivers as listed in the table above (point 4.2) and 
to the Corporate and Locality Plans, our new joint values and the national NHS 
Long-Term Plan (including People’s Plan).

As public sector organisations our Equality Objectives cover a broad range of 
areas.  Over the next 4 years we will deliver our objectives through projects, 
policies and strategies that shape how we commission and deliver services; 
and we will work with others on areas like workforce, communities, children’s 
and young people, skills and health and wellbeing.

Each year, we will produce an Annual Equality Report, that will provide an 
update on each of the Five Objectives, including how we are delivering and the 
outcomes.  Our Annual Equality Report also includes a detailed set of data on 
our workforce diversity, so you can see how we are progressing.  The first 
Annual Equality Report for our new 2020-24 objectives will be published in 
spring 2020.

Some strategic and measurable actions have already been identified and are 
detailed within the strategy and will be reviewed annually to ensure ongoing 
relevance to the needs of both organisations as it continues to develop and 
evolve.

Development of the Strategy included a strategic review of equality which was 
initiated in October 2018 by Joint Equality Steering Group, followed by a series 
of engagement and involvement events, listed below. The main aim was to 
enable dialogue and learning between different stakeholders working with and 
representing a range of communities from protected characteristic groups, 
senior leadership across both RBC and HMR CCG and the staff voice.

Page 7



6

4.14

 Advancing Equalities Across the Borough of Rochdale, 
communities, voluntary sector 14th February 2019

 Equality and Inclusion Session, Wider Leadership, 26th February 
2019

 Equality and Inclusion Staff Focus Groups 8th and 10th March 2019
 Disability Senior Influencer Group - sharing the learning: from 

knowledge to Action (leadership Academy), 11th June 2019
 Greater Manchester Workforce Race Equality Events, 15th October 

2019 and 22nd October 2019
 BAME Conference, 28th October 2019
 Greater Manchester Public Sector EDI Professional Network, hosted 

in Rochdale 15th November 2019
 Building Leadership for Inclusion Intersectionality Day, 14th 

November 2019
 LGBT Conference, 21st November 2019
 Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy briefing Session, 

10th December 2019
 Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy Session, Wider 

leadership team, 17th December 2019
 Joint Equality Steering Group, 29th October 2018, 15th January 2019, 

9th July 2019, 21st October 2019 and 25th November 2019
 Joint Workforce EDI Working group, 30th July 2019, 18th September 

2019 and 5th December 2019
 Rochdale Borough, Health and Care EDI Working Group, 1st 

October 2019 and 3rd December 2019
 Action Together Influencing Group – 26th February 2020
 Consultation Survey of our Draft Equality Objectives, February – 

March 2020

In addition, the list below highlights the activities undertaken to date to inform 
this strategy:

• Fact finding exercise across both organisations, identify gaps 
and work towards joint approach

• Review of Equality Impact Assessment process across RBC 
and HMR CCG

• Insight and engagement from LGBT and BAME conferences
• Mapping exercise Joint Health and Care EDI working Group 
• Insight and engagement from Engage Project (asylum 

seeker and refugees), RADDAG Disability Report, Pride in 
Practice, HIV, Cancer Awareness in BME Communities, 
#IThrive

• Review of HMR CCGs: Equality Delivery System Grading 
Report; Workforce Race Equality Standard reports; Annual 
Equality Publication and Equality Workforce Reports January 
2019 

• RBC Organisational Values and Behaviours Report

Page 8



7

• Feedback from Joint Leadership and Wider Leadership 
teams

• Review of Greater Manchester Local Authorities and CCG’s 
progress around EDI 

• Insight from GMHSP and the Shadow Equalities Board
• Feedback from the Greater Manchester Public Sector EDI 

Professional Network
• Review of latest national, regional and local reports around 

EDI in public sector (NHS Long-Term Plan and the People’s 
Plan etc)

• Insight from the Unknown and Unseen - The needs and 
issues of Kashmiris in Rochdale

• Horizon scanning pending changes: ethnicity pay gap, 
disability reform around statutory sick pay.

• Insight from the GMCA Equalities Advisory Panels – Annual 
Reports March 2020 for Disabled people, LGBTQ and 
Women and Girls.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a 5-year plan which sets out Rochdale 
Councils commitment to provide services that meet the needs of people locally and 
represents good value for money. The MTFS links the Council’s vision and priorities 
with forecasted resources and budgets. The Locality Plan sets out the priorities for the 
CCG for Health and Care which is aligned with both local and national priorities from 
the national The Long Term. The proposed joint EDI strategy aligns with the MTFS, 
Corporate Plan and Locality Plan. It acts as an enabler by developing a culture where 
due regard is taken of underserved communities and staff, statutory, mandatory and 
good practice requirements are met, and outcomes improve. 

Governance Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

6.3

RBC and NHS HMR CCG will need to have the structures that will enable them 
to comply with Equality Act 2010 and to deliver our Joint EDI Strategy 2020-24. 
The same structure will monitor delivery of our mandated reports as described in 
table 4.2 and publishing our progress against the joint equality objectives on an 
annual basis.

The diagram below (point 5.3) sets out the governance structure to monitor the 
performance against the joint EDI strategy and equality objectives 2020-24. 

Accountability in meeting our legal and mandatory obligations ultimately sits with 
the CCG Governing Body and RBC Cabinet. EDI will be led from the top of our 
organisations, for the CCG the Director of Operations/Executive Nurse and for 
RBC the Director of Neighbourhoods. They will be responsible for this Joint 
Strategy and for ensuring that the CCG and RBC publishes annual reports that 
demonstrate compliance with the Public Sector Equality Duty and progress on 
the equality objectives as laid out in this document.

Page 9



8

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

RBC Cabinet and Governing Body will monitor progress through annual reports. 
For the CCG the Quality and Safeguarding Committee; will continue to ensure 
EDI considerations are at the core of CCG business through bi annual reports. 
Equally for RBC Corporate Overview and Scrutiny ensure EDI considerations are 
at the core of RBC business through bi annual reports.

The EDI Strategy and Action Plan will be managed through the Joint Equality 
Steering Group, (chaired by Councillor Sara Rowbotham). Quarterly 
performance updates will be presented to Leadership. The two working groups; 
Health and Care (chaired by CCG’s EDI Strategic Lead) and Workforce EDI 
(chaired by Councillor Daalat Ali) will ensure the operational delivery of our 
mandated requirements.

We will continue to embed EDI into our core decisions rather than manage them 
in isolation. Both organisations will need to operate and promote EDI in line with 
the ‘Brown Principles’, ensuring decisions -makers are made aware of their duty 
to have 'due regard to the equality duty.

The CCG EDI Strategic Lead will manage the day to day business, monitoring 
progress on equality objectives and advising colleagues on legal duties for the 
CCG and will work with partners to progress work including RBC.

Ultimately, the responsibility of EDI sits with all employees working in both 
organisations at all levels.  

This strategy supports NHS HMR CCG and Rochdale Borough Council in 
meeting the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) and the obligation to publish 
equality objectives as set out under the PSED (section 149 of the Equality Act 
2010); and to publish information pursuant to the Equality Act 2010 (Specific 
Duties and Public Authorities regulation 2017) which replaced the 2011 
regulations in 2017.                                            

The strategy should be reviewed in advance of formal adoption to ensure 
continued compliance. This Strategy fulfils the commitment for equalities issues 
to be monitored on a regular basis it also ensures the awareness of the agenda 
at strategic levels.

Page 10



9

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

The draft strategy attached at Appendix 1 has been shared with key stakeholders 
and other interested parties across both organisations, as part of a period of 
informal engagement and feedback running to the 25th March 2020.

The following groups have been part of the informal engagement and feedback:

Committee/Group RBC/CCG Date Purpose
Patient and Public Engagement 
Committee

CCG 16/01/20 Consultation 

Primary Care Commissioning 
Committee

CCG 14/02/20 Consultation

Quality and Safeguarding 
Committee 

CCG 20/02/20 Consultation

Integrated Commissioning Board Joint 25/02/20 Consultation
Informal Cabinet RBC 03/03/20 Consultation

In addition, consultation has taken place via a survey monkey from the 6th February 
to the 6th March 2020, providing an opportunity for all staff from the CCG and 
Council and our stakeholders and public to feedback on the proposed joint equality 
objectives. Responses to this survey was low, with 25 respondents, making it 
statistically unreliable however the survey provided some good thoughtful 
comments and provides a snap shot only for more information please refer to 
Appendix 2.

RBC’s governance route for this final draft version of the Joint EDI Strategy 2020-
24, proceeds the CCG’s Governing Body sign off, as listed in the table below. 
Chair’s Actions has been requested from the Governing Body should it be required 
to endorse any changes requested, following today’s Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny meeting:

Committee/Group RBC Date Purpose
Governing Body CCG 20/03/20 Ratification with request for 

‘Chair’s Actions’
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny RBC 25/03/20 Consultation 

Cabinet RBC 31/03/20 Ratification

Subject to feedback from today’s Corporate Overview and Scrutiny meeting, this 
strategy will then be taken forward for formal adoption and publication by both 
organisations as below: 

 NHS HMR CCG Governing Body, 20th March 2020;
 RBC Cabinet, 31st March 2020;
 Formal publication including an easy read version will be launched 

post approval by Governing Body and Cabinet, between April and May 
2020. 

Consultation

Page 11



10

 A further detailed action plan for internal use will be developed as part 
of the launch to ensure all RBC and CCG directorates identify 
improvement actions. The performance against this action plan will be 
monitored quarterly by Leadership.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 Appendix 1: Proposed Joint 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 
Strategy (2020-24).

For Further Information Contact: Samina Arfan, NHS HMR CCG Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion Strategic Lead
Samina.arfan@nhs.net; 

 

Page 12

mailto:Samina.arfan@nhs.net


1

Let’s get READI
Narrowing the Gaps, Better 
outcomes for all

Rochdale Borough Council 
and 

Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

(NHS HMR CCG)
 

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 
2020 to 2024 (Final)

Page 13

http://humanserviceschamber.org/hsc-forms-roundtable-to-increase-procurement-from-minority-vendors/


2

Welcome to Rochdale Borough Council and Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical 
Commissioning Group’s (HMR CCG) first Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy. 
Our organisations have come together, combining our budgets and working together to 
share in delivering health and social care to the borough of Rochdale. Within this context 
this strategy helps us look at our wider work as public bodies.

We have a lot of pride in the way we are already working with our local communities, 
passionately developing new and pioneering ways to improve the way we work and the 
services we provide. This strategy sets out how we will strive to reduce inequality and 
improve the lives of those with a protected characteristic and those most vulnerable.  The 
things that are most important to us; our people, our place and our shared prosperity are 
at the heart of all that we do. 

We will listen to what our residents are saying, treating them with fairness and respect and 
working together with them to make sure we address inequalities. This may mean that we 
cannot treat all people the same and that we need to work towards equity in access, 
experience and outcomes between groups; whilst protecting and keeping safe those in our 
borough who are vulnerable. We will make sure that Rochdale is a diverse, sustainable 
place where everyone has the best chance to succeed, where our services are inclusive 
and where our communities are not held back so that we all enjoy prosperity regardless of 
background or circumstance. 

We will make sure that equality, diversity and inclusion are at the heart of the decisions we 
make and every service we provide. Where there is inequality we will challenge it and we 
will confront practices which are unfair so that we make the best decisions, deliver the right 
services and improve the quality of life for all our residents and patients 

“We want Rochdale to be a 
place where people thrive 
and reach their full 
potential, making Rochdale 
a fairer place to live and 
work”. Steve Rumbelow, 
Chief Executive 

“We want our services to be 
provided in a way which is not 
discriminatory, is accessible to 
all and which meet everyone’s 
needs.”     Dr Chris Duffy Chair, 
NHS Heywood, Middleton and 
Rochdale Clinical 
Commissioning Group

Our vision - Making our borough a fair and equal 
place to live, work and prosper

Page 14



3

The Equality Act 2006 gave the Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) the duty to 
report regularly on the extent to which equality and human rights are improving in Britain. The 
recent Report ‘Is Britain Fairer? 2018’ is the most comprehensive review of how we, as a 
nation, are performing on equality and human rights through a series of ‘indicators’ to assess 
the elements of life that are important to all of us, including: being healthy, getting a good 
education, and having an adequate standard of living. The yellow boxes in the table below 
highlights some findings from the report .

Other sources including the UCL Institute of Health Equity estimates 1.3 to 2.5 million 
potential years of life lost annually due to inequalities1, ‘People living in deprived areas on 
average have poorer health and shorter lives. Research shows that socioeconomic inequalities 
result in increased morbidity and decreased life expectancy’. The inequalities in the white boxes in 
the table below are sourced from the NHS England Equality and Health Inequalities packs 2018 
for NHS HMR CCG. The recent Health Equity in England; Marmot Review ‘10 Years On’2; 
highlights how life expectancy has stalled for the first time in at least 120 years and the impact 
of socio economic disadvantage on infant and child health. This all presents the enormity of the 
challenges public bodies face in addressing complex inequalities and discrimination for all their 
residents with constraint resources.

The under 75 mortality rates
from Cardiovascular Disease
(CVD) is almost five times
higher in the most deprived
compared to the least
deprived areas

Hate crimes have risen by 10 per cent 
in a year across England and Wales to 
a new record high, amid a surge in 
attacks on transgender people. Racial 
and religious hate crimes were 
highest

Lesbian and bisexual women are twice 
as likely to have never
had a cervical smear test, compared with 
women in general

It is becoming more common for 
children to develop type 2 
diabetes

African-Caribbean and Asian females 
over 65 have a higher risk of cervical 
cancer

Evidence is particularly scarce for LGBT 
people

People with learning disabilities 
are 4 times as likely to die of 
preventable causes

Muslim people report worse health on 
average compared to other religious 
groups

South Asians are up to 6 times more 
likely to develop type 2 diabetes

Homelessness is also on the 
rise, putting more people in a 
precarious position and 
particularly affecting people from 
ethnic minorities, disabled 
people and other at-risk groups.

Black African, Bangladeshi and 
Pakistani people are still the most 
likely to live in poverty and 
deprivation, and – given the damaging 
effects of poverty on education, work 
and health – families can become 
locked into disadvantage for 
generations.

Those from lower income backgrounds 
and Gypsy, Roma and Traveller children 
are getting below-average school exam 
results. These same children are also 
more likely to be excluded from school, 
and poorer young people are less likely to 
go to university

Sexual and domestic violence is a 
persistent and growing concern, 
and affects women and girls 
disproportionately

The disability pay gap persists, with 
disabled people earning less per 
hour on average than non-disabled 
people

Higher rates of domestic abuse and 
sexual assault experienced by disabled 
people, LGBT people and women 

Suicide is currently the biggest killer 
of men under 35in the UK

Poverty for children has increased; 
and is particularly prevalent among 
disabled people and for some ethnic 
minorities

Older people report receiving poorer 
levels of care than younger people with 
the same conditions

1 . Marmot, M. "Fair society, healthy lives: The Marmot Review: strategic review of health inequalities in England post 2010" (2 010).
2 https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/the-marmot-review-10-years-on 

The National Big Picture

Page 15

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/is-britain-fairer-accessible.pdf
https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/the-marmot-review-10-years-on


4

For more information on specific communities and their needs, see Rochdale JSNA

What do we look like – a picture of Rochdale 
borough

Page 16

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/Pages/default.aspx


5

For more 
information 

on our equality 
workplace reports please read:

• Rochdale Borough Council Equality Workforce reports 2018-19  
• Rochdale Borough Council Gender Pay Gap 2018 
• NHS HMR CCG Equality Workforce Report 2018 (to be added)
• NHS HMR CCG Workforce Race Equality Report 2019 

What do we look like – a picture of our workforce

Page 17

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2019-08-09-employment-equality-report-2018-19-v1.pdf
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2019-03-13-gender-pay-gap-2018-v1.pdf
https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/download/governing_body_meetings/governing_body_20_september_2019/PAPER-3.6.3-WRES-Report.pdf


6

Pioneering & Open in our approach

We are ambitious for the people and place of Rochdale and will work collaboratively with local people and 
partners, building relationships based on respect and openness, to deliver the best possible outcomes

Proud of the difference we make

We will celebrate and share our achievements and act as Ambassadors for the borough of Rochdale

Passionate about the diversity of the borough

We love the diversity within our workforce and local communities and will strive for excellence in meeting 
different needs and aspirations

Our joint core values are listed in the table below and work towards living our values in all 
we do. 

Rochdale Borough Council and NHS HMR CCG are committed to ensuring all our residents 
in our borough live long happy lives that are as healthy as possible for as long as possible. 
Our EDI strategy has been designed to link closely with the Corporate Priority Outcomes 
and our Locality Plan. 

Our Values

Page 18



7

Rochdale is a diverse borough which is one of its strengths, we want to secure the benefits of 
diversity by being more inclusive which, will help the council and the CCG to aspire to be: 

 Model Organisation – for all our population, who are future patients, service users, prospective 
partners and employees, who live and work in the borough.

 Model Employer – in recruitment, training, developing, nurturing and retaining the best people.
 Model provider of services – in residents, service users and their families and carers with 

care, compassion, dignity and respect.
 Model commissioner- for health and social care, for suppliers of goods, facilities and services 

supporting our aims and ambitions 
 Model partner- for local, regional and national organisations, together creating innovative and 

mutually beneficial solutions for all.

A wealth of evidence from the public, private and voluntary sectors supports our view that 
greater equality, diversity and inclusion will benefit our residents, our communities, our 
colleagues and our partners. However, we recognise that people can face discrimination and 
prejudice in their lives. We recognise that there are barriers and attitudes that hold people back 
We must address these if we want to make a real and valuable difference to the quality of life 
for everyone in Rochdale. 

This development of this EDI Strategy is a result of a strategic review of EDI across both 
organisations and engagement with staff and communities; and alignment with legislative, 
mandatory, regional and local priorities including the good practice Local Government Equality 
Framework and the NHS mandated standards and frameworks including the NHS Equality 
Delivery System.

Our Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion strategy

Page 19



8

Equality Act 2010
As public bodies we are bound by the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED). This strategy sets 
out how we will meet our statutory and mandatory obligations under this duty, which is defined 
within the Equality Act as: “A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have 
due regard to the need to:

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited by or under this Act;

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it;

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and persons who do not share it.

The Equality Duty is supported by specific duties the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties 
regulations 2011) replaced by the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public Authorities) 
Regulations 2017 in March 2017; which stipulates that every public body is required to:

(a) Publish information annually to demonstrate its compliance with the general equality 
duty. The CCG publishes this annually by 30th March. This includes information 
relating to people who share a protected characteristic who are: 

• Employees (includes Gender Pay Gap)
• People (service users) affected by its policies and practices.

(b) Equality Objectives (specific and measurable) 4 yearly cycle 

Protected Characteristics 

These are individuals’ characteristics protected by the Equality Act of 2010. Understanding 
these different characteristics can improve access, experience and outcomes of residents, 
patients, service users and staff. 

There are 9 protected characteristics and 2 locally identified characteristics 

Age Disability Gender 
Reassignment

Marriage & 
Civil 
Partnership

Pregnancy & 
Maternity

CarersRace Religion & 
Belief

Sex Sexual 
Orientation Armed Forces and 

Ex -Armed Forces 
Personnel 

We are committed to the Social Model of Disability, which sees the way society is organised 
and the organisational, physical and attitudinal barriers it puts in place for disabled people 
as the problem, rather than the individual’s impairment or difference.

Our Equality Objectives and the means of 
measuring our success for the next four years:

Page 20



9

Equality Objectives 2020-2024

Our draft joint five overarching Equality Objectives 2020-24 have been themed with the 
acronym ‘READI’:

 Objective 1: Reduce inequalities and improve outcomes
 Objective 2: Embed Equality and Inclusion in our way of working and meet our 

statutory and mandatory requirements 
 Objective 3: Actively consult, engage, involve and communicate with our 

communities
 Objective 4: Develop inclusive and reflective leadership, workforce and culture
 Objective 5: Improve access to information services and data collection and usage

Objective 1
Reduce inequalities and improve outcomes

Why?
It’s only by recognising the diversity of our populations and addressing why some 
groups experience poorer life chances than others, that we will we break the cycle of 
long-standing inequalities in areas of: employment, health and social care, education, 
early years, community justice, enterprise and skills. By using the key principle of co-
design and thinking beyond the protected characteristics in the context of economic, 
social and cultural identity. Some of the priority areas identified GM and at local level: 
mental health, commissioning, social prescribing and working collectively cross 
sectors.

Aim 1: We will focus on improving health and wellbeing in the Borough, especially for 
groups that experience poorer outcomes. Inequalities will be a key focus of our 
revised Corporate Plan and Locality Plan and we will continue to join up and improve 
health and social care services to provide high quality, integrated and accessible care.

Aim 2: We will continue to raise aspirations for all the boroughs young people and 
work with partners to ensure there are effective pathways into education, training and 
employment (including apprenticeships). We will continue to work with schools and 
partner organisations to close the attainment gaps for disadvantaged pupils and 
children with SEND (special educational needs and disability).

Aim 3: We will continue to work with wider public sector organisations and other 
partner organisations to raise the awareness and resilience of our communities and 
tackle hate crime, domestic abuse and sexual abuse. We will ensure services are 
accessible and meet the needs of our diverse communities. 

Page 21



10

Objective 2
Embed Equality and Inclusion in our way of working and meet our statutory and 

mandatory requirements

Why?
Equality and Inclusion considerations need to be better embedded in all our business, this 
requires an understanding of how they align with the ways of doing things. By utilising 
existing systems, local data, governance and performance management frameworks (e.g. 
Equality Delivery System EDS2, Equality Framework for Local Government etc) and tools 
(Equality Impact Assessments) to continue to identify inequalities and propose 
recommendations to embed equalities good practice in the way we do things: commissioning, 
procurement, service implementation and workforce.  This will enable cross cutting work to 
bring common elements together to deliver the overall programme more efficiently. 

Aim 1: Improve the consistency of Equality Impact Assessments to inform decision making, 
policy development, commissioning and service delivery. We will develop Equality and 
Inclusion champions across both the Council’s and CCG’s directorates and function areas to 
ensure EIA’s are embedded into everyday practice. 

Aim 2: We will focus on our commissioning and procurement processes to ensure equality, 
inclusion and social value are golden threads. We will monitor our service providers to ensure 
they are compliant with contract and service level requirements around equality and inclusion 
standards.

Aim 3: We will annually publish our information reports about our workforce and progress 
against our equality objectives which are aligned with our statutory and mandatory 
requirements (Gender Pay Gap, NHS Workforce Race Equality Standard and NHS Equality 
Delivery System2) and the good practice Equality Framework for Local Government.

Objective 3
Actively consult, engage, involve and communicate with our communities

Why?
Without active, effective and meaningful consultation, engagement and maintaining dialogue 
with our communities, residents, patients and carers we are unable to commission and shape 
our services to make the best of our resources. 
To meet our ambitions, we need to ensure the needs and voices of the most vulnerable and 
disadvantaged are heard.
Aim 1: We will continue to improve engagement and involvement with our diverse and 
vulnerable communities to co-design and co-produce our plans, commissioning, design, 
service delivery and provision.

Aim 2: We will continue to improve our consultation processes with our citizens across the 
variety of methods and forums e.g. surveys, events, citizen panels, focus groups and 
customer feedback and ensure voices reflect our diverse communities.

Aim 3: We will work with partner organisations to celebrate and promote our diverse 
communities and localities. We will support and promote events and activities that celebrate, 
builds resilience and cohesiveness. 

Page 22



11

Objective 4
Develop inclusive and reflective leadership, workforce and culture

Why?
We need to continue to promote inclusion, fairness and accessibility in our leadership, 
members and workforce while raising our workforce diversity. A representative workforce will 
help us commission and deliver services that are accessible, appropriate and that help reduce 
inequalities. Despite progress over recent years and in a period of continued economic 
challenge, we still do not have a workforce that reflects the diversity in the borough 
particularly at senior levels.  We also need a better understanding of the ‘lived experiences’ of 
some staff from underrepresented groups in morale and opportunity. 
Aim 1: We will work and learn from others locally, regionally and nationally to improve our 
approaches to addressing inequality in the workplace. We will work towards meeting our 
equality workforce standards: Disability Confident, Greater Manchester Race Equality 
Indicators, Gender Pay Gap, workforce outcomes in the NHS Equality Delivery System and 
Equality Framework for Local Government and LGBT Advocate Programme. 

Aim 2: We will focus on the recruitment pathway both external and internal and use evidence-
based approaches to improve representation at all levels of the organisation from 
underserved communities and groups.  

Aim 3: We will improve our understanding of the lived experiences of staff from 
underrepresented groups by using organisational development approaches including staff 
surveys, engagement and staff groups. 

Objective 5
Improve access to information services and data collection and usage

Why?
 As a council and a CCG, we aim to commission and provide high quality, accessible and 
equitable services that meet the needs of all our residents. We need to continue to improve 
our knowledge of our residents and patient experience through better understanding of the 
population needs.  We need to reduce waste or inappropriate provision, reducing poor up-
take by impacting on the wider determinates of health for complex areas such as mental 
health.
Aim 1: We will continue to improve our Joint Strategic Needs Assessment ensuring it 
identifies the needs of people with protected characteristics and vulnerable groups and 
related public health data. 

Aim 2: We will increase the availability of equity audits to effectively deliver improvements in 
service access experience and outcome for people with protected characteristics and 
vulnerable groups.

Aim 3: We will continue to work with our partners, including the enablement of the third 
sector to improve efficiency and targeting of services, to ensure value for money and meeting 
the needs of our residents. 

Page 23



12

How we will deliver these objectives?
As public sector organisations our Equality Objectives cover a broad range of areas.  Over 
the next 4 years we will deliver our objectives through projects, policies and strategies that 
shape how we commission and deliver services; and will work with others on areas like 
workforce, commissioning, health and care, communities, children’s and young people, skills 
and health and wellbeing.

Each year, through our Annual Equality Report, we will provide an update on each of the five 
Objectives READI, including how we are delivering and the outcomes. Our Annual Equality 
Report also includes a detailed set of data on our workforce diversity, so you can see how we 
are progressing. The first Annual Equality Report for our new 2020-24 objectives will be 
published in spring 2021. 

Listed below are some of the actions identified to deliver on our equality objectives for 2020-
21, a further internal action plan will be developed to ensure the all directorates of the council 
and CCG deliver against the joint strategy and equality objectives.

 Systemise EIA process to inform decision making;
 Equality Impact Assessment of thematic areas in the Corporate and Locality Plans 

and savings plans;
 Review EDI in Commissioning and procurement;
 EDI workshop for integrated intelligence;
 Self-Assessment against Equality Delivery System Goal 1: ‘better outcomes for 

all’;
 Equality monitoring guidance and standardisation for local use;
 Working with partners to evidence engagement and co-production with 

underserved groups;
 EDI focus in dementia, mental health, Long Term conditions and adult care;
 Trans policy;
 Workforce planning;
 Rolling programme of equity audits;
 Compliance with Accessible Information standard, reasonable adjustments Sexual; 

Orientation Monitoring standard;
 Improved contract monitoring of our providers; 
 Disability conference;
 Improve take of Pride in Practice in Primary Care and roll out of Safer Surgeries; 
 Improve monitoring and analysis of staff in recruitment, disciplinaries, leavers, 

retention, CPD and leadership programmes;
 Use evidence based positive action programmes to improve recruitment pathways;
 Enhance existing and develop new ways to understand staff experience from 

unrepresentative groups for e.g.  staff surveys, influencer groups, networks etc;
 Improve talent management and underrepresented staff on leadership 

programmes;
 Raise awareness of all staff of our statutory and mandatory standards and their 

roles and responsibilities;
 Improve our approaches to addressing bias for underrepresented groups and 

improving health and wellbeing for underrepresented groups;
 Publish an annual Equality Workforce Report;
 Publish an annual public, patient engagement report.

Page 24



13

HMR CCG celebrates successful Annual General Meeting with Lowerplace Primary 
School pupils

During the formal AGM, the room heard summaries of the CCG’s performance over the past 
year from the organisation’s leaders and senior staff, in a

presentation carefully tailored so it was accessible to the 10 and 11-year olds in attendance.

A lively engagement session organised by HMR CCG 
Engagement Lead, Phil Burton followed. Highlights included 
the performance by pupils of an original rap on the themes of 
diversity and inclusion. The young people then participated in 
a game about buying and selling human rights, in which pupils 
had to consider which human rights are the most important to 
them. The session was the

culmination of several classroom workshops on diversity, 
inclusion and human rights that Phil Burton had delivered to 
the Year 6 pupils in the week leading up to the AGM to help 
them prepare.

Speaking about the event, Phil Burton said: “The topic of inclusion and diversity was a complex 
one to cover with the pupils, but they really embraced it and it was interesting to hear their 
points of view on such an important subject. Thank you to everyone who supported the day.”

Rochdale’s Parent Carer Voice 

‘Rochdale Parent Carers Voice are a group of volunteer parents and carers whose aim is to 
represent the interests of families and young people with additional needs and disabilities 
from birth to 25 years across Rochdale, Heywood and Middleton. The Parent Carers Voice 

Some of our Achievements (More to be added prior 
to launch)

Page 25



14

(PCV) is a recognised and respected force for change in the community and as parents 
they are best placed to do this.

The group enable parents/carers to be resilient and positive through being involved and 
empowered, they provide training and coaching, share information and signpost 
parents/carers to services. They are involved in co-production at a strategic level, which the 
Care Quality Commission has stated is a strength in Rochdale and are firmly established as 
a partner in strategic developments for children and young people. 

The forum was instrumental in helping to establish a new single point of access system to 
help deal with referrals and provide a coordinated response to the assessment of health 
needs. It is involved in the appointment of key professionals within the local area, sitting on 
interview panels and has helped to establish new services, such as ‘#Thrive’ – a service to 
support young people with emotional health and well-being issues from birth to 19 years. It 
has successfully worked alongside the LA to improve parent/carer awareness of the local 
offer and keep information up to date’.

Equality Analysis/Equality Impact Assessment Masterclasses 
Equality Analysis sometimes referred to as Equality 
Impact Assessments are an important tool to identify 
inequalities face by underserved communities. 

A series of development masterclasses were delivered 
for all health and social care colleagues working in 
HMRCCG and RBC for adults and children’s social care. 
These masterclasses were aimed at staff that are 
involved in or inform a wide range of decisions that affect 
specific individuals and groups: transformation of 
services, vanguards, commissioning, procurement, 
decommissioning, projects, and strategy and 
corporate/workforce policy areas.

Over 50 staff have undertaken participated and provided a space for cross sector and 
department learning. 

Rochdale’s innovative new dementia centre

Pioneering centre provides some of the UK’s leading care 
and support for people living with dementia and their 
families has been opened. 

Page 26



15

The centre brings together health and social care to provide pioneering integrated care and 
support for those living with dementia. Facilities include 18 high-quality residential rooms, 
respite accommodation, family rooms for relatives and a range of

community services. The Willows is run by Rochdale-based company, GP Care Services Ltd, 
which worked with NHS Heywood, Middleton and 
Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (HMR CCG), 
Dementia UK and Rochdale Borough Council to provide 
advice and expertise around dementia-friendly design.

A number of high-quality, complementary day services 
will also be provided during the week, for those who are 
not residents at the centre.

Dementia is a growing problem in the UK and projections 
show that a third of people born in 2018 are likely to 
develop dementia in their lifetime. There are estimated to 
be around 2000 people living with dementia in the borough of Rochdale alone.

The attention to detail provides a welcoming and dementia-friendly environment including for 
people with learning disabilities and incorporates a range of complementary community 
services.

The centre is an example of our plans to continually provide services in the community that are 
tailored to people’s individual needs, providing the right care and right support at the right time.”

Dementia Dekh Bhaal – Connecting with Carers 
Pilot – was a jointly commissioned by the CCG and 
Rochdale Borough Council to explore the issues 
faced by BME carers who look after people with 
dementia. Hosted by the Life Stories Network, tide 
‘together in dementia everyday’, is a UK wide 
involvement network of carers, former carers and 
health and care professionals who are working 
together to build a better future for carers of people 
living with dementia.

The pilot involved a number of outreach awareness sessions within the south Asian community, 
development of a training package for healthcare professionals and stories of local South Asian 
carers composed as short film. for more about the pilot project please see link below: tide- 
Dekh Bhaal Carer Stories

Safe Haven for adults in crisis in Rochdale officially 
launched

A new crisis care mental health service for adults, the 
Rochdale Safe Haven, was officially opened on 9 

Page 27

http://www.tide.uk.net/dementia-dekh-bhaal-connecting-with-carers/
http://www.tide.uk.net/dementia-dekh-bhaal-connecting-with-carers/


16

October providing support ‘out of hours’ in a comfortable environment.

Launched earlier this year the Safe Haven is run by Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust and 
based at Rochdale Infirmary. It aims to ensure people quickly and easily receive the right 
support, in the right setting.

Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale residents can access the service following assessment at 
their local A&E/urgent care centre or by being referred by their mental health care-coordinator. 
Staff there are mental health professionals and take the time to speak to each patient about the 
issues they’re experiencing and then refer or signpost them to other support.

The difference this Safe Haven makes to Rochdale, it allows someone experiencing a crisis to 
have somewhere safe, calm and comfortable to sit so they can take their time and share their 
feelings. 

The Safe Haven was developed by Pennine Care in collaboration with One Rochdale Health & 
Care and HMR CCG, with funding from the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care 
Partnership. It’s part of ongoing work to transform mental health services for people in 
Rochdale.

Rochdale children and young people’s mental health service one of the best in the 
country

Child and adolescent mental health services (CAMHS) in Rochdale, run by Pennine Care NHS 
Foundation Trust, have been rated one of the best in the country for children and young people 
accessing their services during 2018-2019.

The NHS benchmarking is an annual comparison of 93 services 
across the country to see how they score for different 
measurements like referrals and waiting times. The service, made 
up of Healthy Young Minds and #Thrive, scored above the 
national average for key measurements that show children and 
young people in Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale are able to 
access mental health services quickly when they need it and in 
larger numbers than other areas.

In Rochdale significantly, more children and young people are 
accessing services with 64.6% receiving treatment (according to 
the quarterly strategic data collection service) compared with 
46.9% in Greater Manchester and 35% in England.

The services also had the highest number of referrals received (per 100,000 children and young 
people) in the country with more than double the national average and scored third in the 
country for the number of patients accepted for treatment; again, more than double the national 
average.

As well children and young people in Rochdale waited, on average, two weeks from their 
referral being received to beginning treatment which is four times faster than the national 
average of eight weeks.

Red Bag scheme rolled out to Rochdale borough care homes

Page 28



17

A new scheme designed to improve the 
way care is joined up for patients who 
are admitted into hospital from care 
homes is set to launch in Heywood, 
Middleton and Rochdale this autumn.

From October, all care homes in the 
Rochdale borough will be supplied with 
red bags which will accompany their 
residents when they go into hospital.

Each red bag will be packed with vital 
information about the resident’s health, plus personal belongings such as a change of clothes, 
glasses, hearing aid and dentures. This bag will travel with the resident and stay with them until 
they are discharged, ensuring that the hospital staff and resident have everything they need, 
making the handover smoother between care home, ambulance and hospital.

HART delivers vital protection for homeless

Homeless people in Rochdale are getting vital protection 
against flu this year thanks to the efforts of volunteer 
health workers who visit the Champness Hall soup kitchen 
on Drake Street.

The sessions using vaccinations donated by local GP 
practices are held on Tuesday and Thursday evenings as 
part of the routine health monitoring, support and advice 
service delivered there by the Homeless Alliance 
Response Team, or HART. The volunteer service was set 
up last year by organisers Rochdale Healthcare Alliance, 
with funding from HMR CCG. Dozens of GPs, nurses, 
allied health professionals including therapists, clinical 
pharmacists and mental health workers have all 
volunteered to offer their clinical services to support the 
scheme and help this vulnerable group, many of whom can have complex physical and mental 
health needs.

The flu vaccination sessions will help to protect this at-risk group from serious illness and 
worse. Because of transient lifestyles, homeless people are more susceptible to the harm that 
flu can cause.

There are increasing numbers of homeless people in the borough and we find that this group 
rarely accesses health services at traditional venues like GP surgeries, so our scheme takes 
the health, care and support to venues where and when they regularly attend.”

There are over 63 homeless people who are seen by HART volunteers on a regular basis and 
these are supported and signposted to other services as needed.

Page 29



18

Access to online support and education for 
COPD Patients

Patients in Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale with 
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) are 
now able to access a new app, free of charge, to 
help them self-manage their condition.

MyCOPD is a web-based application providing 
education, pulmonary rehabilitation and disease 
management tailored to the individual user.

This means patients can access support 24/7 on 
their smartphones, tablet or computer to manage their health online. 750 selected patients with 
COPD in the borough are being offered the app free of charge by local GPs, the enhanced 
respiratory service, community matrons in the integrated neighbourhood teams and the 
smoking cessation service who are involved in the care of existing COPD patients in the 
borough.

COPD, the name for a group of lung conditions that cause breathing difficulties, is the fifth 
biggest killer in the UK and it costs the NHS more than £1 billion annually. In 2018-2019 there 
were approx. 6,000 registered patients with COPD in Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale.

MyCOPD educates and empowers patients to take more control of their own care, helping to 
bring improvements in inhaler use and compliance with other treatments. It also makes it easier 
for COPD care to be delivered by health professionals and accessed by patients with a link to a 
clinician-facing dashboard to allow remote monitoring and management of patients at individual 
and population level.

Rochdale children to enjoy a better start in life as new £1.5 million programme tackles 
tooth decay

Hundreds of under-5s across Rochdale are set to be saved 
from the pain and misery of tooth decay after the borough 
has been selected to take part in a new £1.5 million 
programme to transform the dental health of children across 
Greater Manchester.

The Greater Manchester Health and Social Care 
Partnership’s oral health programme has been created to 

Page 30



19

address persistently high levels of tooth decay among under 5s across the city-region.

Nearly half of all five-year-olds in Rochdale (47%) start school with tooth decay – well above the 
averages for both Greater Manchester and England as a whole (25%).

There are currently over 200 hospital admissions a year for tooth extractions among Rochdale’s 
under-tens – making it the most common reason for them to be admitted to hospital. As well as 
causing pain, sleepless nights and days of missed school and work for children and their 
families, each extraction costs the NHS around £1,000. This adds up to a total bill of £20 million 
every year for treating preventable tooth decay in children across Greater Manchester.

Local football club tackles loneliness in the Rochdale borough

A community group set up by Rochdale Association Football Club (AFC) is helping older people 
across the Rochdale borough to beat loneliness, take up new hobbies and make new friends.

The Dales Silver 60s group, which is run by the Dale in the Community Sports Trust and funded 
by HMR CCG’s Social Investment Fund, offers older people the chance to take part in a host of 
activities and make new friends with people who share similar interests.

Every Monday afternoon, 4-6pm around 20 over-60s play walking football at Wardle Academy 
and on Wednesday afternoons, 1-3pm 15 members of the group meet at Rochdale AFC to take 
part in mat bowls, computer activities, bingo, scrabble and other pastimes.

Older people are especially vulnerable to loneliness and social isolation and it can have a 
serious effect on their health and wellbeing. “The Dales Silver 60s group was set up to bring 
together people from across the borough to socialise and try new things.

The group is free to attend and is open to people of all ages, fitness levels and abilities. The 
service offers everything from team sports to help members stay active to games, hobbies, and 
day trips, and feedback has been hugely positive so far. I encourage anyone who wants to join 
us to get in touch. We also offer free transport to those people who need it.”

Community Connectors

Community connector help local people to access the 
health, wellbeing and social care services in the Rochdale 
borough and change their lives for the better.

The role involves talking to people about areas of their life 
they want to improve, and to provide information, advice, signposting 
and, if the person wishes, refer them to the most appropriate team, 
organisation or person to help them to achieve this.

Page 31



20

There are community connectors located at Easy Hubs in Middleton, Heywood and 
Littleborough, so the service is accessible for borough residents wherever they are. People can 
drop in to the Easy Hubs, or email or call in advance to make an appointment. CC also offer 
outreach on different days of the week at various places such as GP surgeries, libraries, 
foodbanks, community centres and independent living schemes– to name a few.

Clients are of all ages and backgrounds including young and older people, as well as asylum 
seekers and the homeless, who come for help with a range of non-medical, health and social 
care problems that they want to solve.  A typical day for a community connector includes 
dealing with questions about everything from employment, benefits, food bank vouchers and 
money management to housing, immigration, support to stop smoking or lose weight and more.

Each client is supported to complete a Wellbeing Checker. This is a confidential questionnaire 
that takes anything from ten minutes to half an hour to fill in depending on the person; it helps to 
build up a picture of what the person needs support with; before directing them to local services 
which can provide help. The role requires building good links with health and social care 
organisations across Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale to ensure clients the most appropriate 
advice.

Teams of community connectors can help with things like healthy lifestyles, housing, 
employment and money management.

Pride in practice - Local GP practices achieve gold standard in LGBT healthcare

The Family Practice in Middleton, and Dr Ghafoor 
and Dr Abbasi’s Practice and Dr Bhima’s Practice 
both based at Nye Bevan House, Rochdale are 
the latest local GP practices to receive a Pride in 
Practice Gold Award for excellence in Lesbian, 
Gay, Bisexual and Trans (LGBT) healthcare. 

Staff at the Middleton and Rochdale surgeries 
recently took part in the LGBT Foundation’s 
Primary Care quality assurance and social 
prescribing programme, Pride in Practice, which 
delivers training for GP practices on how they can 
strengthen and develop their relationship with 
LGBT patients in the communities they serve.

The Pride in Practice Gold Award recognises the 
changes that the practice has made to provide 
better care for their patients, such as making sure 
trans patients are included in routine cancer 
screenings and introducing sexual orientation 
monitoring, as well as recognising the work that 
the practice is already doing to provide an 
inclusive service.

Page 32



21

The practices will also receive on-going support from Pride in Practice, including regular 
LGBTQ+ resources, information on local specialist services, and access to a national network 
of GP Champions.

BME Cancer Awareness Workshops

KYP was commissioned by the CCG’s 
Social Investment Fund, Schemes for 
Access and Prevention Fund, to raise 
awareness of cancer symptoms and 
encourage early testing among BME 
communities. 

A couple of awareness sessions gender 
specific were delivered in partnership 
with:

 Macmillan GP and cancer leader 
for HMR

 GM Cancer Champion 
Coordinator

 BME Cancer Experts, Macmillan User Involvement and Specialist Cancer Services 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

Healey Surgery benefit from new investment to support patient 
access and dignity

Exciting new refurbishment works have been completed at

Healey Surgery The practice, which serves patients in Whitworth, 
Shawclough, Syke, Healey and its surrounding area, has undergone a

programme of improvement work to provide a more welcoming

and accessible environment for patients and ensure that they continue 
to receive high quality care at the premises. The refurbishment also 
offers improved facilities for the staff who work there.

With support from HMR CCG and financial investment from Greater 
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership (GMHSCP) and the GP partners at the 
practice, the surgery has remodelled the reception area, so it is modern, accessible for all 
patients including disabled, and gives patients privacy without a screen dividing them from staff.

Clinical spaces which have benefitted from the investment include six consulting rooms, one 
treatment room and the first aid room. These have been modernised with new flooring and

Page 33



22

decoration so they have a less clinical feel while still meeting all accessibility and infection 
control standards. Patient toilets have also been upgraded and are accessible for disabled 
patients.

The CCG is committed to supporting our GP practices in securing investment in their primary 
care facilities. Updating public areas and clinical spaces like Healey Surgery ensures that 
premises are fit for purpose and patients can benefit from improved amenities.

School flu programme

Flu vaccinations have been delivered to 10,000 children in schools across the borough of 
Rochdale this year.

Children of primary school age, reception through to year 6, are eligible for the nasal flu vaccine 
as part of the free national flu vaccination programme.

The vaccination, which comes in the form of a simple nasal 
spray, has been given to 60% of primary school children in 
the borough. This creates herd immunity and reduces the 
chance of the virus spreading throughout the community. 
IntraHealth are delivering the school programme across 
Greater Manchester which has seen nearly 120,000 children 
receive the vaccination. Flu vaccinations are available for 
those at risk. The free vaccination is offered to vulnerable 
groups including those aged 65 years and over, pregnant 
women and those with long term health conditions

Equality Delivery System – Review of Improved Patient Access and Experience

The CCG measured its performance against EDS2 outcomes for ‘Goal 2 - Improved 
patient access and experience’.

A range of engagement activities included internal engagement with staff and external 
stakeholders. 

A time specific EDS Task and Finish Group was set up to support the process which 
covered all function areas within the CCG including integrated commissioning.  The group 
identified ‘Outcome Leads’ to oversee the 4 outcomes in Goal 2 and worked together to 
collate evidence and cross reference all 
information against the protected 
characteristics and outcomes. 

EDS Grading Event 

Page 34



23

The grading event took place on the 24th June 2018 at Number One Riverside, training and 
conference suite. Over 42 people attended including representation from the community 
voluntary sector. The table below list the range of stakeholder that attended.  

Community and Voluntary 
Sector

KYP, NCompass, Spring Hill Hospice, RADDAG, 
Veterans in Communities, Voices for All, Proud Trust, 
Gateway, LGBT Foundation, Black Health Agency, 
Rochdale Healthwatch, Circle, MIND, Castlemere 
Community Centre, Patient representative, Ashworth 
Surgery Patient Participation Group, Trans NHS. 

Health and Social Care Staff Pennine Acute Hospital Trust, Pennine Care, Greater 
Manchester Shared Services, Continuing Health care, 
CCG, Rochdale Council Public Health, Focus Care 
Workers, Rochdale Council, Tameside Council, 
Manchester FT. 

The overall consensus amongst the stakeholders was that the CCG performance against 
Goal 2, based on the evidence shared is achieving across all outcomes. 

Goal 2: Improved Patient Access and Experience Underdeveloped Developing Achieving Excelling 
2.1 People, carers and communities can readily access 

hospital, community health or primary care services 
and should not be denied access on unreasonable 
grounds.

2.2 People are informed and supported to be as involved 
as their wish to be in decisions about their care

2.3 People report positive experiences of the NHS

2.4 People complaints about services are handled 
respectfully and efficiently

Greater Manchester Commitment 
to Tackling Race Inequality in the 
Workforce

Page 35



24

For decades research has shown that staff from Black Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) 
backgrounds experience discrimination harassment and exclusion in the workplace in the 
UK.

Discrimination is not only harmful to the 
individual, but also to the wider public sector. 
Evidence shows having a more representative 
workforce and diversity at all levels of an 
organisation results in better outcomes for the 
public. It also creates a more inclusive, engaged 
and efficient workforce.  

Greater Manchester’s public sector employers 
from the NHS, Local Authorities, Police and the 
Fire Service will be the first in the country to 
tackle race inequality in the workplace after 
leaders signed a collective commitment, including those from RBC and HMRCCG. 

This was followed up with an interactive session to the Joint Wider Leadership Team 
(CCG/RBC) around workforce race inequality.

Staff from both organisations have now been allocated places on the GM Funded 6 month 
Programme ‘RECAP’ (Race, Equality Change Agent Programme) delivered by the Inclusion 
Centre of Excellence at Northern Care Alliance 
NHS Group.  Learning will be used to improve 
recruitment processes for BAME and other 
underserved communities. 

Menopause Support Group and Employee 
Guidance 

Page 36



25

Equality and Inclusion and Workforce 
We are very proud to have been granted ‘Partner 
Status’, by NHS Employers for diversity and 
inclusion. This is for our work to improve inclusive 
approaches for our staff and our commissioned 
services across Rochdale Borough. The Award 
was presented to our EDI Strategic Lead by Paul 
Wallace, Director of Employment Relations and 
Reward, NHS Employers (on the right) and Kevin 
Holton and (on the left) Head of Experience of Care 
and Equalities and Health Inequalities, NHS 
England.
 
Talk English Project

The Talk English project aims to teach basic ESOL to adults in the borough with little or no 
English to develop their English reading, writing and speaking skills and supporting their 
integration into the wider community by working with local services to increase awareness and 
understanding of the range of provision available in Rochdale.

Classes are taught by trained volunteers who are supported throughout their time with us; these 
take place weekly in community settings during the school year. Many learners have 
progressed onto accredited courses after starting with Talk English while volunteers have 
moved onto higher studies or paid employment.

This year alone (April 19 – Current) Talk 
English Rochdale have delivered 40 
courses with the help of over 70 
volunteers. We have worked with 475 
ESOL learners.

To date, since March 2014 Talk English 
Rochdale have delivered over 200 
courses with the help of over 300 
volunteers. In total we have engaged with 
over 3000 learners with the lowest levels 
of English.

The Talk English team was invited to 
share this good practice at the ESOL for 
Refugees Conference February 2020 led 
by North West Strategic Migration 
Partnership.

Page 37



26

The Talk English team is one of many inclusive projects of the Work, Skills and Health Team, 
whose work involves working with commissioned programmes that support the underserved 
communities including a new service for people with LD, Autism and more severe mental health

Health careers in the spotlight to inspire the next generation

HMR CCG and the Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale (HMR) Primary Care Academy are 
linking up with primary and secondary schools and colleges in the Rochdale borough to 
encourage children and young people to think about careers at the front door of the NHS, as 
well as roles in the wider health service.

From April to July this year, ambassadors including GPs, 
pharmacists, accountants and midwives from HMR CCG and 
the HMR Primary Care Academy visited seven local primary 
schools to deliver interactive workshops to more than 200 
pupils and be quizzed about their careers, and the team is keen 
to work with local primary schools again in this academic year.

Dr Sarah Purlackee, local GP and HMR CCG clinical lead for 
children’s and maternity services, visited Year 6 pupils at 
Sacred Heart RC Primary School, Rochdale in June. She said: 
“Even though there are more than 350 different careers in the 
NHS, some pupils associate it with just doctors and nurses, who 
in reality make up less than 40% of the total workforce. The 
NHS Ambassadors sessions are a good opportunity to get 
pupils thinking about other important jobs that people do in the 
health service and hopefully develop a talent pool for the future.”

Black History Month

In partnership with Rochdale Council, 
Link4LIFE, Mama Health & Poverty and 
CAHN

An annual event to appreciate black culture 
and to teach others about black culture and 
history. The event involved poetry, a fashion 
parade, hair, makeup, multiple stalls, 
entertainment and a raffle.

BAME Conference

Page 38



27

To mark Black History Month HMRCCG in partnership with RBC, Rochdale Borough 
Housing, BHA for Equality, Northern Care Alliance Hospital Group and Greater Manchester 
Fire Service delivered a BAME conference.

This conference was aimed at professionals working across health and social care 
organisations across Rochdale Borough including the 
Voluntary Sector, who want to learn more about 
inequalities affecting BAME communities and workforce

With over 60 attendees of staff, the conference was 
opened by the Mayor Billy Sheerin and key speakers 
including Andrea Fallon, Director of Public Health who 
discussed the local picture. Positive feedback was 
received about the interactive learning sessions listed 
below and the personal journey of the musician Aziz 
Ibrahim:

 Importance of Early Health checks for BAME 
Communities

 Overview of the current Adult Care, support and 
accommodation offer to support ageing well in 
Rochdale

 GM Workforce Race Equality Plan and GM Race 
Equality Change Agents Programme

 Apprenticeships
 Intersectionality BAME & LGBT

Page 39



28

The Joint Equality Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2020-24 details how both Rochdale Borough 
Council and NHS Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group fulfil our 
legal obligations under the Equality Act 2010 and Public-Sector Equality Duty (PSED). 

It builds on the achievements and developments made since the introduction of the council’s 
policy ‘No Matter who’ 2016-19 and the CCG’s Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Strategy 
2014-17.

This part of the strategy provides details of how this strategy fulfils our legal obligations under 
the Public Sector Equality Duty of the Equality Act 2010. It also explains in more detail the 
meaning of the ‘protected characteristics’ that fall under the remit of the Act, and the Act’s 
coverage.  

At the end of the document, there are details on where further information can be accessed.

The public sector equality duty and our responsibilities 

The public sector equality duty is laid out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. It came into 
force on 5th April 2011, and it states that a public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, 
have due regard to the need to:

a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by 
or under the Act;

b) Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not share it;

c) Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who do not share it.

These are often referred to as the three ‘arms’ of the duty.

In short, this means that both the Council and CCG must consider the impact our actions have 
on equality, and whether when delivering a particular service or function, or in our roles as 
employers, we are furthering the aims set out in law.  The specific duties, detailed below, show 
the minimum amount of information we must publish to show that we are complying with the 
general duty.

This duty replaced the previous Public Sector Equality Duties that were in force covering race, 
sex and disability and expanded the scope of the previous duties to cover all ‘protected 
characteristics’ (although only the first ‘arm’ of the duty applies to marriage or civil partnership).

Legislation, frameworks and positive action measures

Page 40



29

The Duty also applies to bodies that deliver services on our behalf, as in doing so they are 
exercising a public function. For example, a private sector provider that is contracted to deliver 
a service in relation to adult social care would be required to consider the general duty and 
would be subject to its provisions. However, only the part of the organisation that is delivering 
the public service is subject to the duty; the organisation as a whole is not.

Having ‘due regard’ for advancing equality involves:

a) Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people who share a relevant 
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;

b) Taking steps to meet the needs of people who share a relevant protected characteristic 
that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;

c) Encouraging people who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in 
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

This means that when we are considering how our practices, policies and procedures impact 
upon equality we need to also be considering the ways in which we can mitigate any potentially 
negative impacts and ensure that access to our services remains fair and equitable.

For example, the law requires us to make reasonable adjustments to the way in which services 
and public functions are delivered where a disabled service user may be placed at a substantial 
disadvantage. In considering how a service is delivered or offered, we need to consider the 
potential barriers that a person with a disability may have to overcome in order to access it and 
put in place reasonable adjustments to lessen these. Such adjustments may be physical, or 
they may involve providing an auxiliary aid, or altering the way in which the service is delivered

The Specific Duties

The specific duties are contained within the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties) Regulations 
2011. They came into force from July 2011 and confirm the minimum steps that public bodies 
must take in relation to publishing information on equalities, such as workforce monitoring data 
and equality objectives.  The 2011 Regulations were replaced by The Equality Act 2010 
(Specific Duties and Public Authorities) Regulations 2017 in March 2017.

The regulations state annually, public authorities (with 150 or more employees) must publish 
information to demonstrate compliance with the general duty, including information about the 
protected characteristic status of employees, and other persons affected by our policies and 
practices. 

The regulations also state that public authorities (with 150 or more employees) must publish 
one or more specific and measurable equality objectives, and subsequently at intervals of no 
more than four years from the date of first publication.

The information we publish must be in a manner that is accessible to the public and may be 
contained within another published document. This in effect removes the requirement on public 
bodies to publish separate and specific equality schemes, as noted earlier.

Previously the CCG’s equality objectives were published in their Equality, Diversity and Human 
Rights Strategy 2014-17. The new joint equality objectives for the council and the CCG are 
published in this strategy.

Page 41



30

Compliance with the duty

Publication of this Joint EDI Strategy 2020-24 ensures that we are adhering to the regulation 
stating that we must publish one or more specific and measurable equality objectives, and 
subsequently at intervals of no more than four years from the date of first publication. 

This strategy contains our equality objectives and we have ensured that these are outcome 
focussed and are in alignment with other key strategic documents.  As Rochdale Borough 
Council and NHS HMR CCG have come together to form the integrated commissioning 
directorate, the equality objectives are applicable to both organisations. 

These sections also detail the processes and structures we have in place to ensure that 
appropriate consideration of equality issues is embedded in our decision making and day to day 
work.

Furthermore, it builds upon the work done as part of previous schemes and strategies of each 
of the organisations by including details of how we have engaged with our communities and 
ensured that those protected under legislation have been involved as part of influencing, 
developing and shaping the commissioning and delivery of services.

In providing the framework of how we approach equality in the area; it confirms a number of 
actions and processes that our services undertake in order to meet the general and specific 
duties. For example, the Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) process helps us ensure that the 
decisions we take have been properly considered for their impact on relevant protected 
characteristic groups, and are based on solid evidence, including feedback from consultation 
and engagement. We use the EIA process, and the principles embedded within it, to ensure 
that we are complying with the general public sector equality duty. Similarly, the EIA process is 
just one of the ways in which we satisfy the requirement of the specific duties by publishing 
information relating to individuals sharing a relevant protected characteristic who are affected 
by our policies and practices.

The EIAs produced to support individual policy changes and practices by the council and CCG 
are available within the individual decision reports produced by the services.  Equalities 
information relating to the Council’s workforce is published online at 
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/equality : and CCG workforce equalities information is published at 
https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/policies-plans-and-reports/equality-and-diversity.

The Protected Characteristics

The main provisions of the Equality Act 2010 came into force on 1st October 2010. 

These provide the basic framework of protection against discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation, for the nine recognised ‘protected characteristics’ in employment, public functions 
and services, transport, premises, education, and associations. 

The Act replaces all existing anti-discrimination laws1 with a single piece of legislation. The aim 
is to streamline previous laws and ‘level up’ protection across the protected characteristic 
groups.

The nine protected characteristics, and what is meant by them, are detailed below, as are 
details of the protection given by the Act. 

The nine protected characteristics are:

Page 42

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/equality
https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/policies-plans-and-reports/equality-and-diversity


31

 Age
 Disability
 Race
 Sex 
 Religion or Belief
 Sexual Orientation
 Gender Reassignment
 Pregnancy & Maternity
 Marriage 

The Council and CCG has added two further locally determined characteristics:

 Carers 
 Armed Forces and Ex -Armed Forces Personnel

The Equality Act 2010 is a wide-ranging piece of legislation and will apply differently in certain 
situations and circumstances. There are, for example, areas where discrimination is lawful, 
such as where the provisions of another law demands it, or where an action can be justified as 
a proportionate means of achieving a legitimate aim. The level of protection afforded by the Act 
will depend on individual circumstances.

Age

This is defined as a reference to a person’s age group. This can mean people of the same age, 
or a range of ages, for example ‘under 18s’ or ‘over 50s’, or a specific age group e.g. ‘25-34-
year olds’. People who share the protected characteristic of age are therefore in the same age 
group, although this can be broad as well as very specific. Age groups do not have to be 
defined numerically, they can be relative e.g. ‘older than you/me’. 

Disability

The Equality Act 2010 defines a disability as a physical or mental impairment which has a long-
term and substantial adverse effect on a person’s ability to carry out normal day to day 
activities. This includes sensory impairments such as those affecting sight or hearing, and also 
any impairment which consists of a severe disfigurement. Long term means that the impairment 
has lasted, or is likely to last, for at least 12 months or the rest of the affected person’s life. 

The Act has changed previous disability law, in that a person now no longer needs to 
demonstrate that their disability affects a particular function such as mobility or speech. This 
used to be known as the ‘list of capacities’.

Some illnesses, such as cancer, multiple sclerosis and HIV infection, are covered by the Act, 
from the point of diagnosis, under the protected characteristic of disability. Progressive 
conditions, and those with fluctuating or recurring conditions, will also be considered as 
disabilities in certain circumstances. 

The Act strengthens the support given to people associated with someone with a disability, 
such as carers, by expanding the coverage of discrimination by association to cover disability. 

It also introduces the concept of discrimination arising from a disability, where someone suffers 
unfavourable treatment as a consequence of something arising from their disability.

Page 43



32

The Act also seeks to ensure that disabled people are given fair treatment when applying for 
positions of employment, in that it now bans the asking of pre-employment health questions, 
including sickness absence (other than in certain, specific circumstances).

For information as to what constitutes a disability under the Act, and where the Act applies, 
please consult the Statutory Codes of Practice or the information held on the Office for 
Disability Issues website.

Race

A person who is from a particular racial group will have the protected characteristic of race. A 
racial group is defined as a group of people who have, or share, a colour, nationality or ethnic 
or national origins. All racial groups are protected from unlawful discrimination under the Act, 
and an individual may fall into more than one racial group.

Sex

Sex refers to a man or woman of any age, or groups of men and/or boys, and women and/or 
girls. The protected characteristic of sex does not include gender reassignment or sexual 
orientation. These are covered separately. 

Religion or Belief

Religion or belief includes any religion and any religious or philosophical belief. This protected 
characteristic therefore includes the commonly recognised religions such as Christianity, Islam, 
Judaism, Sikhism and Buddhism for example. However, in order to be protected, a religion 
does not necessarily need to be mainstream or particularly well known, but it must have a clear 
structure and belief system. It also includes a lack of any religion or belief, for example 
philosophical beliefs such as Humanism and Atheism.

Sexual Orientation

Sexual orientation refers to a person’s sexual orientation towards persons of the same sex (i.e. 
a gay man or a lesbian), persons of the opposite sex (i.e. heterosexual), and persons of either 
sex (i.e. bisexual). It also relates to how people feel, as well as their actions. Discrimination 
under this protected characteristic covers discrimination as a result of how someone’s sexual 
orientation manifests itself i.e. in how that person presents themselves, or the places they 
choose to visit.

Gender Reassignment

Gender reassignment is the act of moving away from one’s birth sex to the preferred gender i.e. 
from male to female, or vice-versa. It covers anyone who is proposing to undergo, is 
undergoing, or has undergone the process (or part of the process) to reassign their sex. 

The Act removes the requirement for the person proposing to undergo this change to be under 
medical supervision in order to be protected, recognising that it is a personal process and not 
necessarily a medical one. 

Pregnancy and Maternity

Where a woman is pregnant or on maternity leave she is covered by this protected 
characteristic, as well as being covered by protection and rights afforded to her by other 
statutory rights such as time off for antenatal care and health and safety protection. In cases 

Page 44



33

where an employer has to treat a pregnant employee more favourably than other workers, men 
cannot make a claim for sex discrimination based on this more favourable treatment.

Marriage and Civil Partnership

When the Equality Act 2010 was first introduced marriage referred to any formal union of a man 
and a woman which is legally recognised in the UK as a marriage. 

Civil Partnership refers to a registered civil partnership under the Civil Partnership Act 2004, 
including those registered outside of the UK. Civil partners must not be treated less favourably 
than married couples (except there permitted by the Equality Act). 

However, following legal changes in 2014, same sex couples can now marry in civil ceremonies 
or religious ones where the religious organisation allows it throughout England, Scotland and 
Wales. Civil partners who wish to convert their civil partnership into marriage are also able to do 
so. Additionally, married transgender men and women are now able to change their legal 
gender without having to end their marriage. 

The status of being unmarried or single is not protected. Similarly, people who intend to marry 
or form a civil partnership but have not yet done so, or who are divorced or have had their civil 
partnership dissolved, are not protected by this characteristic.

Additional Locally Determined Characteristics

The additional local determined characteristics are defined as:

Carers – anyone who cares, unpaid, for a friend or family member who due to illness, disability, 
a mental health problem or an addiction cannot cope without their support. This includes young 
carers who may be providing support to a parent.

Armed Forces and ex-Armed Forces Personnel – those who have served in the Armed 
Forces and since left them.

Discrimination, victimisation and harassment

The Equality Act provides the basic framework of protection for people in relation to 
employment, public functions and services, transport, premises, education, and associations. 
Most protected characteristic groups are covered by the Act in relation to the areas below, 
although there are some differences as to when and where this protection applies. 

The information given below is intended as a brief overview of the main principles and coverage 
of the Act. It is not definitive, and it does not constitute legal advice.

Direct Discrimination

Direct discrimination occurs when a person is treated less favourably than someone else 
because of a protected characteristic. This definition is broad enough to cover cases where the 
less favourable treatment is because of the victim’s association with someone else who has 
that characteristic (discrimination by association), or because the victim is wrongly thought to 
have that characteristic (discrimination by perception). 

The Equality Act extends the coverage of discrimination by association and discrimination by 
perception to disability, sex, and gender reassignment. Previously, discrimination by association 
and discrimination by perception only applied to race, religion or belief, and sexual orientation.

Page 45



34

Indirect Discrimination

Indirect discrimination occurs when a rule or policy which applies in the same way for 
everybody has an effect which particularly disadvantages people with a protected characteristic. 
Where a group of people are disadvantaged in this way, a person in that group is indirectly 
discriminated against if he or she is put at that disadvantage, unless the person applying the 
rule or policy can justify it. Where this rule or policy can be justified it is said to be a 
proportionate means of achieving a legitimate aim. Indirect discrimination is therefore not 
always unlawful.

The Equality Act extends the coverage of indirect discrimination to disability and gender 
reassignment.

Victimisation

Victimisation occurs when someone is treated badly because they have done something in 
relation to the Equality Act, such as making or supporting a complaint or raising a grievance 
about discrimination, or because it is suspected that they have done or may do these things. 

Similarly, a victim of harassment need only demonstrate that they have been treated badly; they 
do not have to show that they have been treated less favourably than someone who has not 
made or supported a claim under the Act by way of comparison.

A person is not protected from victimisation if they have maliciously made or supported an 
untrue complaint.

Human Rights Act

The Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA) came into force in 2000.  Everyone in the UK is protected 
under the Act. Public authority is obliged by law to respect the basic human rights of all citizens.  
As a public body we must always act in a manner compatible with rights protected in this Act 
and safeguard these for patients and staff in our care and employment.

Human Rights are underpinned by a set of common values and have been adopted by the NHS 
under the acronym FREDA:

 Fairness
 Respect
 Equality
 Dignity
 Autonomy 

Whilst there is some recognition of human rights principles in delivery in services, there is less 
so in the design of services – and we need to embed a greater sense of meeting human rights 
right at the beginning of shaping up services for greater cost effectiveness. Consideration of 
Human Rights is also given in our Equality Impact Assessment process, to ensure that our 
policies and strategies are compatible with the rights afforded by this Act. 

Health and Social Care Equality requirements 

Health and Social Care Act 2012

The Act builds on the core principles and values of the NHS – a comprehensive service that is 
available to all, based on need and free at the point of use. It charges the National 

Page 46



35

Commissioning Board with an explicit duty to address inequalities in outcome and achieve fair 
equitable access to health services.

The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012

This Act calls for all public-sector commissioning to factor in or have regard to economic, social 
and environmental well-being in connection with public services contracts; and for connected 
purposes. This Act is a tool to help commissioners get more value for money out of 
procurement. It also encourages commissioners to talk to their local provider market or 
community to design better services, often finding new and innovative solutions to difficult 
problems.

RBC and HMR CCG are keen to make sure that our supply chains contribute as much as 
possible to the overall wellbeing of our residents and we therefore include social value as part 
of the procurement process. Recently the Council increased its weighting for social value 
considerations is 20% meaning that all companies and organisations bidding for our contracts 
must give social value serious consideration when putting tenders together. 

Accessible Information Standard (AIS)

The Accessible Information Standard was introduced by NHS England in 2016. The standard 
tells organisations providing NHS or publicly funded adult social care how they should make 
sure that patients with disabilities receive information in formats that they can understand and 
receive appropriate support to help them to communicate. 

Effective implementation required health and social care organisations to make changes to 
policy, procedure, human behaviour and, where applicable, electronic systems. Full 
implementation of the Standard was required by 31 July 2016. More information about AIS can 
be found here: www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/accessibleinfo/ 

Sexual Orientation Monitoring Information Standard

NHS England has worked with key stakeholders including NHS Digital, the Lesbian Gay 
Bisexual and Trans (LGBT) Foundation to develop the Sexual Orientation Monitoring 
Information Standard (SOM). The SOM information standard provides a consistent mechanism 
for recording the sexual orientation of all patients/service users aged 16 years and above 
across all health services in England. It will also cover local authorities with responsibilities for 
adult social care in all service areas where it may be relevant to record this data using a 
standardised format. More information about SOM can be found here: 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/sexual-orientation-monitoring-
information-standard/ 

Performance Frameworks

NHS Equality delivery system 2 (EDS2)

The CCG must comply with the Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2). 

NHS England introduced the Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2) to help NHS organisations 
improve the services they provide for their local communities and provide better working 
environments, free of discrimination, for those who work in the NHS, while meeting the 
requirements of the Equality Act 2010.

Page 47

http://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/accessibleinfo/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/sexual-orientation-monitoring-information-standard/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/sexual-orientation-monitoring-information-standard/


36

The main purpose of EDS2 is to help local NHS organisations, in discussion with local partners 
including local populations, review and improve their performance for people with protected 
characteristics. From April 2015, EDS2 implementation by NHS provider organisations was 
made mandatory in the NHS standard contract. EDS2 implementation is outlined within the 
CCG Assurance Framework and continues to be a key requirement for all NHS CCGs. In 
addition, it has four levels of achievement: ‘Under developed’ 'Developing', 'Achieving', 
'Excellent'

More information about EDS2 in general can be found 
at:www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/eds/ 

The Equality Framework for Local Government (EFLG)

The purpose of the Equality Framework for Local Government (EFLG) remains to help 
organisations, in discussion with local partners including local people, review and improve their 
performance for people with characteristics protected by the Equality Act 2010. By using the 
EFLG organisations can also be helped to deliver on the public sector equality duty (PSED). 
Organisations using the guidance for self-assessment are likely to reference other locally 
appropriate characteristics evidenced as suffering inequality (then those mentioned in the 
PSED). The EFLG continues to encourage local adaptation with a focus on local issues and 
problems, and prompts learning from, and the spreading of, good practice. The Framework 
comprises five performance areas: Knowing your communities; Leadership, partnership and 
organisational commitment; Involving your communities; Responsive services and customer 
care; a skilled and committed workforce.

In addition, it has three levels of achievement: 'Developing', 'Achieving', 'Excellent'

More information about EFLG in general can be found https://www.local.gov.uk/our-
support/guidance-and-resources/equality-frameworks/equality-framework-local-government 

NHS Workforce specific standards

NHS Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES)

The Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES) was introduced by NHS England in April 2015. 
This sets out the requirement to demonstrate progress against a number of indicators of 
workforce equality, including a specific indicator to address the low levels of BME board 
representation. Implementation of the WRES is a requirement on both NHS commissioners and 
NHS provider organisations. 

Clinical Commissioning Groups have two roles in relation to the WRES – as commissioners of 
NHS services and as employers. The provisions of the NHS standard contract require CCGs to 
give assurance to NHS England that their providers are implementing and using the WRES. 
Implementing the WRES and working on its results and subsequent action plans should be a 
part of contract monitoring and negotiation between CCGs and their respective providers.

CCGs are not required by the NHS standard contract to fully apply the WRES to themselves as 
some CCG workforces may be too small (i.e. under 150 employees) for the WRES indicators to 
either work properly or to comply with the Data Protection Act. However, CCGs should commit 
to the principles of the WRES and apply as much of it as possible to their own workforce. In 

Page 48

http://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/eds/
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/equality-frameworks/equality-framework-local-government
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/equality-frameworks/equality-framework-local-government


37

doing so CCGs can demonstrate good leadership, identify concerns within their workforces, and 
set an example for their providers

In practice, to aid due regard to the implementation of WRES, CCGs should:

• Collect data on their workforce
• Carry out data analyses
• Produce an annual report
• Report and action plan publication

The WRES Reporting Template is available for CCGs to use in this regard. From 1 July 2016 
onwards, CCGs have been expected to produce an annual WRES report, accompanied by an 
action plan where appropriate.

Although HMRCCG falls below the threshold for the requirement to complete WRES we have 
committed to completing as many of the WRES indicators as possible. This ensures we show 
regard to the principles of WRES and are following good practice. Demographic data relating to 
the CCG’s workforce data is also published on the CCG website in accordance with the 
Equality Act (Specific Duties) Regulations.

NHS HMRCCG’s WRES data for 2018/19 can be accessed here: 
https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/download/our_organisation/equality_and_diversity/WRES-Report-
September-2019.pdf 

More information about WRES in general can be viewed here: 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/equality-standard/       

NHS Workforce Disability Equality Standard (WDES)

NHS England has agreed to a recommendation put forward by the NHS Equality and Diversity 
Council (EDC) to mandate a Workforce Disability Equality Standard (WDES) via the NHS 
Standard Contract in England from April 2018, with a preparatory year from 2017-18. 

The proposed standard will use data from the NHS annual staff survey and look at areas such 
as workforce representation, reasonable adjustments, employment experience and 
opportunities.

More information about WDES can be found at: 
www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equalityhub/wdes/ 

Greater Manchester commitment to tackling race inequality in the workplace and greed 
Key Data Indicators

Signatories include NHS organisations, local authorities, Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue 
Service and Greater Manchester Police. RBC and HMR CCFG have signed up to this 
commitment. With this commitment in place, an action plan has been developed in partnership 
with staff, trade unions and BME staff groups before being launched in the autumn. As well as 
bringing together data to provide a clearer picture of the experiences of BME staff within 
different public sector organisations, the plan will also map out positive action to be taken to 
address race inequality.

 A set of 6 key indicators have been agreed for signatories across Greater Manchester Race 
Equality. The key indicator is around leadership and recruitment, with a 15% increase of BAME 

Page 49

https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/download/our_organisation/equality_and_diversity/WRES-Report-September-2019.pdf
https://www.hmr.nhs.uk/download/our_organisation/equality_and_diversity/WRES-Report-September-2019.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/equality-standard/
http://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equalityhub/wdes/


38

staff at each pay level of the organisation mapped against overall staff in organisation. 
(including Executive Board Members) in the next 3 years.

Greater Manchester Apprenticeship projects and targets

BAME Apprenticeship Project: Working with employers, providers and apprentices to remove 
unconscious bias and increase positive action to ensure apprenticeship workforce is 
representative of GM’s working age population a target of 16%.

Older Apprentices; 5% of GM’s apprentices are over 50 years old. Working with the Ageing 
Hub we want to better understand their journey, raise awareness of the opportunities and work 
with employers and providers to target this cohort

Care Leavers: Working with LA’s and other partners to ensure a consistent offer for care 
leavers linked to Apprenticeships across GM’s localities

Learning Disability / Difficulty: Raising awareness of apprenticeship opportunities for people 
with LDD

Page 50



 
 

1 

 

 

 
 

Appendix 2:  

 
 
 

Rochdale Borough Council (RBC)  
and  

Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group  
(NHS HMR CCG) 

 
 

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy and Equality Objectives 
2020-24 

 
Engagement and Consultation Report 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
March 2020 

Page 51



 
 

2 

 

 
 
Rochdale Borough Council (RBC) and Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical 

Commissioning Group (NHS HMR CCG) 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy and Equality Objectives 2020-24 

Engagement and Consultation Report 
 
1. SUMMARY OF REPORT:  
 
1.1 A strategic review of equality was initiated in October 2018 by the Joint Equality 
 Steering Group of Rochdale Borough Council (RBC) and NHS Heywood 
 Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (NHS HMR CCG) which 
 is chaired by Councillor Sara Rowbotham and Director of Neighbourhoods. Over 
 2019 a series of engagement and consultation events took place (listed below in 
 2.1).  
 
1.2 The main aim was to enable dialogue and learning between different 
 stakeholders that work with and represent a range of communities from 
 protected characteristic groups, senior leadership across both RBC and NHS 
 HMR CCG and the staff voice. 
 
1.3 This report provides an overview of the insight gained from the engagement and 
 consultation undertaken, which was used to inform the joint EDI Strategy and 
 equality objectives 2020-24 for RBC and NHS HMR CCG. 
 
2.  Overview 
 
2.1 Our EDI Strategy and Equality Objectives are very important to RBC and NHS 
 HMR CCG. They guide the work we carry out in the borough and demonstrate 
 our commitment to challenging inequality and promoting a fair and inclusive 
 Rochdale borough. A series of engagement, involvement and consultation events 
 were undertaken, this report will focus on activity listed below: 
 

• Advancing Equalities Across the Borough of Rochdale, 14th February 
2019 

• Equality and Inclusion Wider Leadership Session, 26th February 2019 

• Equality and Inclusion Staff Focus Groups 8th and 10th March 2019 

• Joint EDI Strategy Wider Leadership Session 17th December 2019 

• Health and Care EDI Working Group Mapping Session 3rd December 
2019 

• Consultation Survey February - March 2020 
 
2.2 The main aim was to enable dialogue and learning between different 
 stakeholders working with and representing a range of communities from 
 protected characteristic groups, senior leadership across both RBC and HMR   
 
 

Page 52



 
 

3 

 

 
 CCG and the staff voice. The report below will detail some the findings and 
 themes from these events.  
 
3. Advancing Equalities Across the Borough of Rochdale 
 
3.1 This section provides an overview of the Advancing Equalities Across Rochdale 
 Borough Event, 14th February 2019 at KYP.  

 
3.2 The background to the event, was within the context of Greater Manchester 
 Health and Social Care Partnership (GMHSCP) Memorandum of Understanding 
 (MoU) with the regions Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) 
 sector. A core element of the MoU is the recognition the role that GM VCSE has 
 in addressing health and social care inequalities. A GM Shadow Equality Board 
 (SEB) was set up in June 2018 and Black Health Agency (BHA) for Equality was 
 commissioned to support the work of the SEB, including a roadshow of 
 ‘Advancing Equality’ events across the 10 boroughs of GM. 
 
3.3 This was timely for Rochdale Borough as both RBC and NHS HMR CCG, were 
 on a journey to work more closely together to develop a Joint EDI Strategy and 
 Equality Objectives.  
 
3.4 This event had been co-produced in partnership with the Greater Manchester 
 Combined Authority (GMCA), Greater Manchester Centre for Voluntary 
 Organisation (GMCVO), and BHA, GM Devolution VSCE Reference Group, KYP, 
 NHS HMR CCG and RBC. The aim was to promote a collaborative and inclusive 
 approach to shaping the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion priorities for the 
 Borough. 
 
3.5 The Event took place on the 14th February 2019 at KYP, (Apna Ghar), and was 
 opened by the Borough’s Lord Mayor and RBC Director of Neighbourhoods. Over 
 50 people attended including representation from the community Voluntary 
 sector. The table below lists the range of stakeholder that attended and 
 participated. Appendix 1, (page 21) provides an overview of the agenda.  
 

Community and 
Voluntary 
Sector  

KYP, PossAbillites CIC, Ambition for Ageing, Rochdale Connections Trust, 
Future Directions CIC, Castlemere Community Centre, Deeplish Community 
Centre, Barnardos (Rochdale), Big Life- Thinking Ahead, Rochdale and District 
Mind, The Stroke Association (Manchester Area) office base only, Nigeria 
Community Association, RADDAG, Action Together, Healthwatch, Wellfield 
Health Centre,  Caring and Sharing Charity Organisation, Voluntary Centre 
Rochdale, Guide2Light, Future Care CIC Recovery Republic CIC, Guide2Light, 
Cartwheel Arts, Skye Community Base, Rochdale Borough VSDM 

Health and 
Social Care 
Staff and Others 

Rochdale Borough Council, NHS HMR CCG, Pennine Acute Hospital Trust, 
Pennine Care Foundation Trust, Greater Manchester Shared Services, 
Stockport NHS Foundation Trust, Rochdale Health Alliance, Focus Care 
Workers 

GM Sector Black Health Agency for Equality, LGBT Foundation, GMCVO, GMCA 

Page 53



 
 

4 

 

 
  
 
3.6 Artist were used to capture the day, and themes discussed, these are available to 
 view in Appendix 2 (from page 22). Speakers included: 
 

• Mohammad Zaman, Mayor of Rochdale  

• Mark Widdup, Director of Neighbourhoods, RBC 

• Audrey Okyere-Fosu, Equalities Coordinator, Health and Social Care GM 
VCSE 

• Safina Nadeem, Chair GM EDI Professional Network 

• Samina Arfan, EDI Strategic Lead, NHS HMR CCG 

• Alex Whinnon, Chief Executive, GMCVO 

• Amanda Higgs, PossAbilities CIC 

• Zulf Ali, KYP 

• Khadija Tily/Sue Hennessy – Rochdale Voluntary Sector Alliance  
 
 
3.7 The table below shows some of the comments and themes from the facilitated 
 table discussions following the presentations. The discussions were based 
 around: 
 

• Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT) 

• How could the GM Equalities Body add value to the work in Rochdale 
Borough? 

• What should be the local priorities for the Borough? 

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES 

• Values, attitudes 

• Diversity has strengths  

• Commitment from organisations 
public and voluntary 

• Integration -cut duplication 

• Dedicated expertise in some 
organisations 

• Pockets of good practices   

• Commitment to LGBT initiatives in 
the Borough 

• Community knowledge across the 
Voluntary sector 

• COOP values 

• Partnerships are getting stronger 
in Rochdale than GM 

• Joint approach to equalities, RBC 
and CCG  

• NHS focus on Equalities: EDS 
WRES etc 

 
 

• Cultural or socially inappropriate services 

•  Seldom heard not hard to reach 

•  Lack of joined up initiatives 

•  Lack of awareness of dynamics of each 
community  

• Accessibility for people with disabilities  

• Understanding hidden disabilities 

• Recruitment -lack of trust in processes, 
perception of bias 

• Diverse workforce – not reflective of 
communities 

• Quality of interpretation services in hospitals 
and GPs, carers not included 

• Consistency in undertaking EIAs on changes 
in the borough that effect people’s life’s and 
staff – need to start right at the beginning 

• Need a stronger focus on addressing 
inequalities in BME communities  

• Lack of service level data to show equity for 
groups/ Better understanding of the baseline 
data for BME, LGBT and Disability and where 

Page 54



 
 

5 

 

 
How could the GM Equalities Body add value to the work in Rochdale Borough? 
EIA – ensure GM bodies undertake EIAs of key work programmes including workforce, 
commissioning, Public Sector Reform; equality body should scrutinise plans, which can inform 
localities 
Mental Health – GM focus on reducing mental health disparities between groups  
Social Prescribing – GM Charter 
Workforce – GM focus on Workforce Race Equality, need to also look at disability; more 
collaboration between public bodies across GM around workforce and equalities, not just NHS; 
develop and identify thematic training and development. 
Voluntary sector – more development to help VCS influence more  

What should be the local priorities for the Borough? 
Mental health - reducing stigma in communities; still poor access for BME groups; cultural 
competent services with trained staff; train people with lived experience from BME, LGBT, 
Disability, Carers groups to become Mental Health First Aiders; support more men from different 
communities into mental health services and better understanding about trans communities.  
Commissioning/service provision – embed equalities and social value into commissioning and 
procurement processes so  that it is evident; ensure equalities is part of the review of 
project/services and programmes; JSNA needs to reflect more information on equality groups, 
vulnerable people including homeless and asylum seekers/refugees; Look at a pathway for 
vulnerable groups into primary/health and social care and other public services; Develop 
commissioners to go beyond population numbers to truly understand barriers communities face and 
address them; Reasonable adjustments is still an issue more needs to be done to ensure services 
take into account disability; Services should be compliant with the Accessible Information Standard, 
roll it out across the Borough.  
Social prescribing – involve and commission more grass roots organisations to do social 
prescribing, work 
Workforce – Review recruitment processes and pathways to build trust including recruitment 

 to make improvements 

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS 

• Consultations that are better 
informed – do ground work pre-
consultation 

• Be vulnerable hare what hasn’t 
worked and learn from it 

• Using more lived experience of 
residents and staff from equality 
and vulnerable groups 

• Data sharing to improve access to 
services (ask once)  

• Positive role models 

• Reflective staff that understand 
local need 

• Deep dives that are thematic 
around protected groups e.g. 
LGBT in care settings, BME and 
dementia/mental health 

• More joint working 

• Trans policy  

• Addressing taboos within and 
across communities  

• One for all approach 

• Funding cuts for the Voluntary and 
community sector has a knock-on effect on 
equality/vulnerable groups  

• Increased perception of racism, islamophobia  

• Brexit 

• Election outcomes   

• Public sector organisations not prioritising 
equalities 

• Postcode lottery depending on where you live 
in GM, some localities have invested more in 
equalities than others  

• Time – change takes time unrealistic 
expectations from voluntary groups that are 
facing cuts 

• Elected members who don’t understand all 
equality issues  

Page 55



 
 

6 

 

panels, address unconscious/conscious bias; Improve reflectiveness at all levels and in leadership 
positions; Training and development beyond basic ED training, should have more thematic 
development around Trans, LGBT, BME, cultural intelligence, Disability, reasonable adjustments, 
neurodiversity carers etc train councillors, GPs; All organisations should have the same 
development so there is consistency in messages. 
Involvement and Engagement – promote cohesion between groups and opportunities to engage 
and learn about each other; more involvement in commissioning design and review, improve the 
seldom heard voices; develop local voluntary groups in thematic equality areas, influencing skills, 
bid writing skills 
Data – have a more collective understanding of communities by using data from across 
organisations (schools, GPs, colleges, health, housing, fire, police, council, voluntary sector etc); 
consistent equality monitoring across services using best practice categories; service provision 
should show equity and gaps which allow focused work; thematic insight into dementia and BME 
carers, LGBT and care settings, veterans, Trans policy etc 
Intersectionality – an acknowledgement in service transformation and provision that 
intersectionality or ‘layers’ of inequality not only contribute to but compound inequalities for already 
marginalised groups  
Share Good Practice – RBC and CCG’s joint approach around equalities  
Communication and Language – consider lack of availability of languages and accessible 
communication formats as barriers to accessing services; more thought into how messages around 
health and wellbeing are communicated to communities take a more community development 
approach; targeted work within communities currently experiencing poor health and wellbeing 
outcomes 

 
 
4. Equality and Inclusion Leadership Session, 26th February 2019 
 
4.1 A workshop session was delivered on the 26th 
 February to the Joint Wider Leadership Team 
 (WLT) (RBC and NHS HMR CCG) were asked to 
 think about priorities around equality and inclusion 
 to inform a joint equality strategy across the 
 Council and CCG. 
 
4.2 The WLT were split into four groups and analysis 
 exercise was undertaken around the following 4 
 areas: 
 

• Leadership, political, governance & 
decision making 

• Services, commissioning & partnership  

• Workforce, recruitment, profile & talent 
management 

• Communities, service users  

• & voluntary sector. 
 

 The table below highlight the feedback and themes 
 
 

Page 56



 
 

7 

 

 
 
 

Leadership, political, governance & decision making 
STRENGTHS 

• Good insight 

• Information about communities and their needs 

• Lessons learned – sharing information from reviews 

• Political governance   

• Conversations are taking place 

• Sign up to the GM Workforce Race Equality commitment 

• Co-production 

• Relationships to build on 

• CCG Governing Body understanding  

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 

• Ensuring all communities are represented 

• Political governance engagement 

• More information regarding processes 

• Flexibility for work force hours etc 

• Using insight as part of decision making processes 

• Embedding equalities across the organisation and transformation areas 

OPPORTUNITIES 

• Lessons learned – sharing information from reviews 

• Recognition of changes/ generational 

• Profile of workforce talent pool 

• Influence outsourced services  

• Changing communities 

• Utilising data information we have 

THREATS 

• Stigma within communities 

• Democracy? 

• Use of excuses – apathy  

• pace of change 

Workforce, recruitment, profile & talent management 
STRENGTHS 

• Good recruitment policy 

• Policy to recruit local population into grades 1-3 

• Partnership approach to share good practice  

• NHS Focus on workforce WRES, EDS etc 

• CCG has expertise 

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 

• Proactive strategy to increase BME representation at all levels  

• Market Rochdale Leadership Academy 

• Encourage declaration of identity status: ethnicity, disability LGBT etc 

• Deep dive into data – what does it tell us about our recruitment 

• Dissemination of data and better use of it 

• Define objectives and report against 

OPPORTUNITIES 

• Diverse population and staff– how do we give them a voice  

Page 57



 
 

8 

 

• Development of council members around EDI and how they support communities 

• To not see is as a NHS or LA thing all standards are to meet the PSED so good for both 
organisations 

• Use CCG expertise 

THREATS 

• Perception of local authority – could this impact on attracting talent and recruitment 

• Do populations know about the CCG? 

• Available workforce 

• Is this high enough on the agenda 

• Open to litigation, impact staff retention and experience  

Services, commissioning & partnership 
STRENGTHS 

• How we respond to service and customer 

• How we prioritise groups and services 

• Positive partnership working – between statutory organisations and voluntary (good track 
record) 

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 

• Better use of available data – smart commissioning 

• Better use of social value opportunities in commissioning and procurement  

• New voluntary sector structure 

• Wider use of EIAs 

• Proactive commissioning gives more time to understand needs of communities 

• New conversation with residents   

OPPORTUNITIES 

• To analysis the data available to inform decision making  

• Social value 

• Identity unknown -bias 

• Monitor take up of services, development of an intelligent hub 

• Proactive commissioning -3 years ahead 

• Communicate what is available and what the service offer is 

• Reform of Public Services 

THREATS 

• Time and money 

• Common understandings of communities 

• Not enough rich data 

• Training to develop skills 

• Unknown bias 

• Reactive commissioning 

Communities, service users & voluntary sector 
STRENGTHS 

• Diversity 

• Voluntary sector groups - relationships 

• Pension groups 

• Learning disability partnership 

• Youth parliament 

• Not divided – people live well together 

• townships 

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 

Page 58



 
 

9 

 

• Overview of requirements 

• Community engagement needs enhancing  

• Are we missing population groups? 

• Funding – more certainty 

• Inequalities – access, uptake, services, outcomes (after thought) 

• Keeping up to date with the makeup of the borough and what it means for how we do 
things? 

• Understanding the barriers 

• townships 

OPPORTUNITIES 

• Age friendly communications 

• Engagement – action together 

• Community champions 

• Education around safety 

• EIAs if done properly  

• LGBT steering group 

•  Townships/neighbourhoods 

THREATS 

• Funding time limited  

• Extremism – demonstrations 

• Cohesion with emerging communities of how they are perceived 

• Poverty/deprivation 

• Organised crime groups 

• Isolated people   

 
 
5.  Equality and Inclusion Staff Focus Groups 8th and 10th March 2019 
 
5.1 Staff Focus Groups where undertaken as lunch time drop-in’s sessions on the 8th 
 and 10th of March. This provided an opportunity for RBC and CCG staff to 
 highlight what was important to them. The table below shows some of the 
 feedback and themes.  

 
Training and developments 

• Training is needed on equality for all staff to understand the intricacies/nuances of our 
communities. this should be broads and generic for all staff 

• Equalities training should be mandated for all staff on an ongoing basis 
• There needs to be awareness of intersectional issues where there is cross over  
• There is lack of consistency on supporting diversity issues by line managers, they need 

better equipping to support staff to prevent potential discrimination 
• There is lack of understanding of different cultural issues 
• More thought is needed about how to deal with cultural clashes between staff and 

between different identities  
• More opportunities for staff to learn about different identities -this helps understanding of 

communities we serve better  

• Training for staff about trans issues – could be a workshop 
 
 

Page 59



 
 

10 

 

Support for Staff 

• We need staff support groups for BME, Disability, LGBT and Carers, as safe space for 
staff to interact, share experiences etc, this would also help the organisations in policy 
development 

• The council is beginning to co-produce with disability groups, parents and services users 
but on occasions the advice which has been sought is not implemented maybe due to 
cost – this undermines informed input 

• The council needs to be more accessible in employing people with disabilities, there 
have been instances where reasonable adjustments have taken 6 months to implement 

• A trans policy is needed for health and social care staff 

• LGBT staff group would be good for networking, visibility and flagging issues  

•  Is there anything in place for staff who are transitioning? 

Corporate 

• The council branding should be more reflective of diversity and inclusivity  

• The is a tendency for the council to view staff as a homogenous group, there needs to be 
a mixed perspective, understanding of bias etc 

• There should be a transparent reporting procedure to record inappropriate, sexist, racist, 
bigoted commentary from staff and members  

Other 
• Some staff there is a generally accepting of different cultural issues  

• It is good to have access to the CCG EIA training workshops 

• The CCG seem to be doing more around equalities and a consistent approach is needed 
across both organisations 

• Equality champions are needed to help embed EIAs into teams across directorates   
 

 
 
6. Joint Equality Objectives Strategy Session  
 
6.1 A facilitated strategy session was delivered to the joint wider leadership team 
 (RBC and NHS HMR CCG) on the 17th December 2019. The aim was to review 
 the draft joint equality objectives, look at good practice, areas of development and 
 where RBC and CCG want to be in four years’ time. The outcomes of the session 
 are available to read in Appendix 4 
 
7. Health and Care EDI Working Group Mapping Session  
 
7.1 The Health and Care EDI working group was set up to support the delivery of the 
  EDI requirements mandated for health and social care Including: 
 

• Equality Delivery System 2 

• NHS Accessible Information Standard 

• NHS Sexual Orientation standard 

• GM Pride in Practice 
 

7.2 The group includes staff working across the local health and care economy A 
 mapping exercise was 3 December 2019. The following questions where 
 discussed in groups: 

Page 60



 
 

11 

 

• What are we doing well?  

• What aren’t we doing well?  

• What don’t you know?  

• Risks 

• What resources?         
       

7.3 The outcomes of the session including themes are available in appendix 5: 
 
 
8.   Consultation Survey for Proposed Equality Objectives 
 
8.1 A consultation took place via a survey monkey from the 6th February to the 6th 
 March 2020, providing an opportunity for all staff from NHS HMR CCG and RBC 
 and our stakeholders and public to feedback on the proposed joint equality 
 objectives.  
 
8.2 Responses to this survey was low, with 25 respondents, making it statistically 
 unreliable however the survey provided some good thoughtful comments and 
 provides a useful snap shot.  
 
8.3 Below are some useful insights drawn from the survey. 24% of respondents felt 
 that the proposed equality issues addressed the key issues. 48% of respondents 
 where from RBC, 44% were from NHS HMR CCG, 12% were residents and 
 4% from the voluntary sector.  
 
8.4 Demographic and protected characteristics of the respondents was collected 
 however due to the low numbers of respondents this information cannot be 
 shared. However, there were respondents from Black Asian and Minority Ethnic 
 backgrounds (Pakistani, Bangladeshi and Kashmiri); disabled people; age groups 
 (between 19-74 years); gender; faith (Christian, Atheist and Muslim); Sexual 
 Orientation (Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual).  
  
8.5 Question 2 asked whether people felt the set of proposed Equality Objectives 
 focused “on the right things” Majority of the respondents 68%, felt the 
 proposed joint equality objectives focused on all and most of the key issues 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



 
 

12 

 

 
 
8.6   For each of the five proposed equality objectives, people were asked “to what 
 extent that this is an important objective?”  
 
8.7 The responses were very positive as the five  charts below show. 
 

 
 
 100% of respondents either strongly agree or agree that this is an important 
 objective. 
 

 
 
 
 100% of respondents either strongly agree or agree that this is an important 
 objective. 

Page 62



 
 

13 

 

 
 

 
 
 100% of respondents either strongly agree or agree that this is an important 
 objective. 
 
 

 
 
 88% of respondents either strongly agree or agree that this is an important 
 objective. 12% of respondents neither agree or disagree that this is an 
 important objective.  
 
 
 

 
 

Page 63



 
 

14 

 

 

 
 
 
 92% of respondents either strongly agree or agree that this is an important 
 objective.4% of respondents neither agree or disagree and 4% disagree that this 
 is an important objective. 
 
8.8 Comments and Suggestions 
 Respondents were also invited to leave comments/ suggestions regarding each 
 objective. This section providers an overview of some of the feedback that was 
 received and our response.  
 

Objective 1: Reduce inequalities and improve outcomes 

 Summary of Feedback 
In general, the objective was difficult to disagree with. There were several comments 
about commissioning and delivering services more inclusively: ‘more detail on how we 
will protect transgender people from the increased levels of discrimination they are 
currently enduring’, ‘ I have never received any training on delivering services in a way 
that is trans inclusive’,’ It would also be good if the specific needs of the traveller 
community and those of the refugees and asylum seekers’.  
 
Some comments wanted more acknowledgement of the impact of discrimination: 
‘Rochdale is a very diverse place and we celebrate that diversity without focusing on the 
clear divide that exists in the borough. Within the older generations (middle aged plus) I 
have experienced discrimination for being female, being alternative and for my sexual 
orientation’. ‘how will the racism that our Muslim residents and colleagues face be 
addressed ‘My friends still experience racism when just walking around the town centre’,  
 
Some comments wanted more insight of how inequalities are being addressed, 
‘Rochdale has some of the greatest inequalities and it would be useful to have some 

Page 64



 
 

15 

 

baseline with targets of how these aims will help reduce inequalities’ ‘we need to 
improve testing for HIV’, ‘we have growing disability in the borough we need to do more 
to address accessibility and attitudes.  
 
Our response  
We understand the devasting impact the wider determinates of health inequalities and 
the impact of discrimination and barriers have on the wellbeing of our residents and 
staff. We will continue our work on community resilience and cohesion. We will also 
improve the knowledge of our staff by providing more insight into inequalities faced by 
underrepresented groups.  
 

Objective 2: Embed Equality and Inclusion in our way of working and meet our 
statutory and mandatory requirements 

Summary of Feedback 
Strong views about the impact of cuts and improved transparency in decision making 
including equality impact assessments, ‘funding cuts are agreed without Equality 
Assessments more transparency I needed before decisions are made’.  
 
Meeting the Equality Act 2010 regarding disability was also a theme, ‘2010 EA 
superceded the DDA, placing additional requirements on public sector bodies. Some of 
the duties under the EA designed to protect the disabled have not been honoured, 
possibly due to a lack of awareness and understanding. A report published by the 
House of Commons in 2017 concerning Equality - " Disability & The Built Environment " 
highlights this very problem. 
Our response  
We agree further work is needed to embed EIA’s into our decision making. We have 
plans to focus on disability to increase our awareness of the social model and 
accessibility.   
 

Objective 3: Actively consult, engage, involve and communicate with our 
communities. 

Summary of Feedback 
This was viewed in some comments as essential, ‘communities are what need to be 
worked on most’, ‘I can appreciate the idea of working to promote and celebrate 
diversity, but this needs to be started from a young age. We need to teach children more 
about different nationalities, cultures, religious backgrounds sexualities, genders, etc.’ 
‘all age groups. ‘All should have a voice irrespective of age, gender, language’. 
 
Some comments wanted more engagement focus ‘A greater understanding of the 
cultural differences and social influences will enable us to further engage with various 
demographics to ensure their inclusion’, ‘It takes more than various communication 
methods to fully understand and integrate disenfranchised communities’, ‘need to do 
more to engage the voices that are not heard. Also, ‘better images in documents that 
reflect communities’. some also acknowledged the challenge in delivering this within the 
financial constraints, ‘this will involve a huge change of culture and the addition of 
resources to make it happen’. 
Our response  

Page 65



 
 

16 

 

We would agree with this feedback. Having a deeper insight through co production and 
alternative engagement methods will help those disenfranchised be more involved. We 
have begun some of this work with our citizen panels and with our partners Action 
Together’ and the HART programme for the homeless. We recognise that more needs 
to be done to ensure diverse voices are reflected in our work. We acknowledge 
celebrating and promoting diversity is important and we will continue to do so. Equally 
we acknowledge the need to focus on accessibility, improving services for LGBT and 
BAME communities.  
 

Objective 4:   Develop inclusive and reflective leadership, workforce and culture. 

Summary of Feedback 
Diversity at senior levels was a theme in most comments, ‘I can clearly see that the 
senior levels are not diverse at all’, ‘It feels like there is inequality within the workforce, 
especially at senior level. It evident when looking at the senior representatives of both 
organisations’.  
Support for underrepresented staff was also a theme, ‘More needs to be done to support 
disabled, BME and LGBT representatives at the top table. As well as gender pay gap, 
we need to also consider both BME and disability pay gaps’.  
 
Other comments focused on staff development at all levels, with better understanding 
for line managers and above, ‘there probably does need to be a recognition of training 
for staff that undertake recruitment and awareness of the Equality Act and the relevant 
duties to ensure a truly fair process that takes into consideration Equality and Inclusion 
and does not disadvantage group’,’ respect for all ages, genders, experience, 
qualifications’, ‘There's still such a stigma around mental health with people finding it 
difficult to ask for help’ and ‘why we do not have staff support groups?’ 
 
Our response  
We acknowledge the feedback and concerns around lack of diversity in senior positions, 
along with challenges in terms of progression and barriers to progression. We know we 
have challenges with underrepresentation of BAME, disabled people and LGBT. 
Through our commitments with this objective, we will continue to promote inclusion, 
fairness and accessibility in our workforce, while working towards improving our 
workforce diversity at all levels. We have started this journey already and is the focus of 
the Workforce EDI working group.  
 

Objective 5: Improve access to information services and data collection and 
usage 

Summary of Feedback 
Some comments and suggestions related to the JSNA, ‘The JSNA uses a lot of 
outdated data based from 2011 census data and further 'projections' based on the 2011 
data which is not appropriate for service planning and design’, others wanted to see 
data used to make change in service delivery, ‘if it leads to improved services yes’. 
 
Others wanted more evidence of triangulating data, with engagement to inform equality 
impact assessments, if we truly want to understand patients, we need to regularly go out 
there and hear people's concerns from Rochdale Need to consider how we 

Page 66



 
 

17 

 

communicate to patients and people who do not understand public sector jargon or 
speak a different language’. Improved workforce data was also raised. There was also 
acknowledgement that Action Together has some innovative approaches but is on a 
journey which will take time.  
 
Our response  
We would agree with this feedback. The objective needs to not just be about gathering 
information, once we have this information we need to use our improved knowledge and 
understanding to continue commission and deliver better services that meet the needs 
of all our communities. We also acknowledge we need to improve what data we have 
about the make-up of our staff.  

 
 
9. Summary of findings and next steps 
 
9.1 The insight from the engagement and consultation events described throughout 
 this report has provided some rich insight into the perceptions and priorities 
 around equalities, from a communities, leadership and staff perspective.  
 
9.2 Interestingly common themes are emerging and some differences between the 
 perception amongst leadership to that of staff and communities in some areas.   
 Common themes include: 

• Workforce -Training and development, recruitment, reflectiveness, talent 
management, reasonable adjustments, staff support groups, developing line 
managers  

• Data – better use of data, improving data collection and better understanding of 
nuances  

• EIA – to inform decision making, triangulation with engagement and JSNA data, 
understanding barriers, better commissioning. 
 

9.3 As a result of the insights identified in this report, we will continue to reflect on the 
 feedback in the delivery of our joint equality objectives and review our progress.  

Page 67



 
 

18 

 

Appendix 1: Agenda – Advancing Equalities Across 
Rochdale Borough 

 

Page 68



 
 

19 

 

Appendix 3: Artist illustrations

Page 69



 
 

20 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



 
 

21 

 Page 71



 
 

22 

 

 
  
 

 
  

Page 72



 
 

23 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



 
 

24 

 Page 74



 
 

25 

 Page 75



 
 

26 

 Page 76



 
 

27 

 Page 77



 
 

28 

 Page 78



 
 

29 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 79



 
 

30 

 

Appendix 4: Presentation slides from Equality and Inclusion 

Leadership Session 26th Februa 
ry  

Page 80



Outcome of Wider Leadership EDI 
Strategy Session 
17/12/2019

APPENDIX 5

P
age 81



Aims and 
objectives of 

the session

To shift mindset of WLT to support the improvements needed 
around equality and inclusion 

In groups to work on the high level themed objective area 
READI focusing on  4 of the 5 and looking at  I working well, 
gaps and to identify measurable metrics to work towards 
over the next 4 years

1. Reduce inequalities and improve outcomes

2. Embed EDI in our way of working and meet our statutory 
and mandatory requirements this objective will not be part 
of the workshop

3. Actively   consult, engage, involve and communicate with 
our communities

4. Develop a reflective, inclusive leadership, workforce and 
culture

5. Improve access to information, services and data 
collection and usage

P
age 82



Reduce 
inequalities 
and improve 
outcomes

Good

• At a community level – we recognise 
diversity

• Good at identifying issues around crime

• High level recognition of health 
inequalities 

• Complex safeguarding and trauma 
informed care

• Good at doing things in a targeted way

• Strong voluntary sector working with 
protected groups

P
age 83



Reduce 
inequalities 
and improve 
outcomes

Gaps 

•Were not focusing on 
health inequalities 
disadvantage

•Understanding the right 
questions

•Recognising the breadth 
and depth of inequality

P
age 84



Reduce 
inequalities 
and improve 
outcomes

Where we want to be in 4 years 

•Reduced neglect and 
poverty

•Improved  GP services 
more accessible , removing 
barriers

•Improved COPD, 
Respiratory problem's and 
Diabetes across all PCGs

P
age 85



Actively   
consult, 
engage, involve 
and 
communicate 
with our 
communities

Good

• Patient Public and Engagement Committee/CCG Engagement 
Lead 

• CCG EDI Strategic Lead working across both 

• Citizen panels  

• Commissioning –ithrive

• Elected members talking to communities

• Townships area forums

• Rochdale in rainbows steering group

• Cohesion team 

• PCCA

• Action together

• Interpretation and translation services 

• Cohesion Atlas

• EIA training

P
age 86



Actively   
consult, 
engage, involve 
and 
communicate 
with our 
communities

Gaps

• More engagement is needed with our underserved communities

• Reactive 

• Clarity of who we are trying to reach

• Not sharing good practice that is happening across the 
organisations

• Perception that engagement is hindered by regulation and not 
creative and doesn’t achieve results

• Accessible reports 

• Knowledge of communities from PCGs

• Workforce capacity –resources, time knowledge 

P
age 87



Actively   
consult, 
engage, involve 
and 
communicate 
with our 
communities

Where we want to be in 4 years

• A locality based approach to engagement across all 
organisations within the borough

• Increase engagement responses by for each PCG by ?%

• Minimum data set

• All consultation documents will be in easy read

• Shared approach to interpretation services 

• An increase take up of talk English programme

P
age 88



Develop a 
reflective, 
inclusive 
leadership, 
workforce and 
culture

What is Good

• Opportunity for staff to provide feedback – staff survey

• Good policies ?

• Mechanism to consult and listen to staff

• Fair recruitment (social value Adults)

• Social value in an all procurement contracts

• Training for staff (early days) –lunch learns conferences 

• Getting better at celebrating diversity

• Elected members representatives

• Adopted additional PCGs Veterans and carers

• CCG GB fairly representative 

• Rochdale in Rainbows

• Financial fund e.g. discretionary fund allocation

• Values

• Employment equality reports – GPG, WRES, Equality

P
age 89



Develop a 
reflective, 
inclusive 
leadership, 
workforce and 
culture

Gaps

• Building (N1R) for disabled people 

• EIA (Burden?) skills and data to 
undertake 

• Less men working in RBC/CCG

• Recruitment – attracting people from 
underserved communities 

• Gaps in data in HR processes

• Unrepresentative workforce  at senior 
levels 

P
age 90



Develop a 
reflective, 
inclusive 
leadership, 
workforce and 
culture

Where do we want to be in 4 years

• Every level of decision making within the organization is 
appropriately influenced by an intersectional, 
representative group of workforce (less hierarchical and 
more representative) 

• Changed EIA process –embedded rather than form filling

• Encouraging people to have conversations

• Improving recruitment from under representative 
communities 

P
age 91



Improve access 
to information, 
services and 
data collection 
and usage

What is Good

• JSNA – good starting point 

• Housing needs assessment

• Good data around diversity in schools

• Homelessness data

• National data reports around diversity

• Our Rochdale 

• Monitoring in some areas 

• Integrated intelligence team

• Speak English programme

• Interpretation and translation

• Accessible information standard for HSC

P
age 92



Improve access 
to information, 
services and 
data collection 
and usage

Gaps

• JSNA – lack of intelligence/deep dives for PCG 

• Data – fractured multiple data sources 

• Data isn't accessible to managers and not used 
routinely as part of reviews/service redesign

• Understanding what data we hold National 
data reports around diversity

P
age 93



Improve access 
to information, 
services and 
data collection 
and usage

Where we want to be in 4 years

• Change the data we have about PCG

• Evidence based EIAs, commissioning 
and service redesign 

• More staff using right data numbers and 
intelligence 

• More sharing data and what it means 
across departments

• More insight and deep dives 

• Reviewing JSNA with next census 

P
age 94



Health and Care EDI 
Working Group

Mapping Exercise 

APPENDIX 6

P
age 95



What are we doing well?

• Dedicated Equality lead

• Public health are data driven –this is segmented into sections

• Mapping exercises in PH – looking at delivery and service 
reviews

• EIA/equalities training

• PH use evidence base to plan preventative actions for All 
interventions

• Good communication on equalities for all services 

• EDI more high profile

• Maybe a lot of hidden good practice 

• Corporate approach around PPE in CCG user voice in 
GB/PCCC/ICB

• PPEC

• Looking art holistic Health Needs impact

• Larger term health gains working in partnership

• Commissioning at GM level

• Early health checks for SA communities

• Safeguarding for vulnerable people in the way we work

• Homelessness –HART

• CAHMS, Young People

• Identifying carers

• Primary care academy developing workforce including BAME

• Interpretation and translation

• CVS + Carers on ORHC, promoting awareness of health 
inequalities

• Draft joint EDI strategy

• HC EDI working group to drive agenda

• SEED funding for communities to support access and bespoke 
needs

• Pride in practice increasing 

• Organisations and departments working together to support 
CI

P
age 96



What aren’t we doing well?

• Give time to develop and grow services, see impact and 
results

• How do commissioners access specialist groups to consult on 
service developments e.g. dementia/adult care

• Providers see needs in services and demand in communities 
doesn’t always align with LA/CCG priorities 

• Enforcing consequences of not meeting EDI requirements

• Making time to understand equality agenda and how we can 
support

• Senior management buy in/from providers/champions

• Not ingraining EDI into saving plans

• Embedding EIA into service redesign

• Lack of communication of what is going on

• Making legislation and mandatory requirements easy to 
understand 

• Commissioners to link in with VCSE providers to understand 
gaps they are identifying 

• Providers to work better together to meet the needs of 
protected characteristics

• EDI not considered in budgeting a service

• EDI is an afterthought/or tick box

• We don’t talk to groups pre commissioning 

• We don’t use or have good roles models for PCG

• We don’t monitor those using services well and were we do 
information isn’t used by commissioners

• Reactive mode, responding to political needs

• Lack of understanding of lived experience across groups

• Afraid of criticism

P
age 97



What don’t you know?

• What are each organisations strategies and 
plans

• You don’t know what you don’t know

• Micro groups, and unmet need, emerging 
communities, hidden populations

• What are the different health needs of PCGs

• What people don’t disclose in terms of their 
PCG

• Service users thoughts and feelings 

• Duplication 

• What is happening around inclusion in adult 
care

• Contract compliance

• What is happening in LDS/disability

• Outcomes of engagement not shared

• Danger of working to assumption's/bias

• Not fully aware of legislation

• Data updates changes in population where to 
find this and what to do with info

• Point of contact 

• Trans policy gender neutral?

• Voice of the BAME female

• EIA that have helped

• Accessible information standard

• Need input from Primary Care and 
independent sector

P
age 98



Risks

• Reputation

• Safeguarding, not treating people with 
dignity or respect

• Financial pressures from not doing EDI

• Staff not reflective of communities

• Widening gaps between groups by 
treating everyone the same

• Litigation for not being accessible

• Poor access to services 

• Poor patients experience and 
outcomes 

• HIV early deaths

• More people getting ill

• Inconsistent levels of services

• We put all our asks with one provider 
to meet all needs but cant 
demonstrate delivery

• Unwarranted variation

• Priorities change in LA/CCG but 
inequalities don’t for communities

• Emerging communities and vulnerable 
groups (asylum refugees homeless

• Ambitious plans for all the residents 
but this cant be verified

P
age 99



What resources? 

• short learning sessions

• Segregated data more info about PCG experiences

• Best practice from other organisations

• Identification of  cohorts within services 

• Data to show where patients have carers

• National guidelines and law

• Assessing what we can do in addition to statutory 
guidelines

• Comms plan for decision making and 
implementation 

• Access to GM wide service user groups/insights 

• More collaboration

• Support guidance, space to think and learn

• Lived experience from PCGs

• Stakeholders

• Public representation

• Champions

• VCSE input

• Senior management buy in

• Change of government

• Process policy, standardised EIA for the HC system

• BI to gather , understand data linking across all 
organisations

• Time

• E-learning

P
age 100



Themes

• EIA

• Sharing good practice 

• Learning sessions 

• Lived experiences – across PCG

• Knowing our communities 

• Improving services delivery

• Improving commissioning practices

• Improving data or service users

• Reasonable adjustments

P
age 101



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 24 March 2020
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture

Report Author Carolyn Whitham
Public/Private Document Public

1st  & 2nd Quarter Corporate Complaints

Executive Summary

1. The report provides Members with a summary of corporate complaints and 
compliments received during the first and second quarters of 2019/20.

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that Members of the Committee consider and scrutinise the 
information contained in the report and assess whether further information or 
explanation is required regarding any of the issues raised in the report.

Reason for Recommendation

3. Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the
Authority’s ambition to continuously improve services is realised, and actions 
or decisions may need to be taken to maintain improvement.

Key Points for Consideration

4. The Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman’s definition of a complaint 
is “an expression of dissatisfaction about a Council service (whether that 
service is provided directly by the council or by a contractor or partner) that 
requires a response”

In total, 298 new complaints were received during the first half of 2019/20 
across all services.  The majority of the complaints were resolved at stage 
one, with only 8 escalating to stage two and 1 complaint being dealt with at 
stage three.   A total of 148 compliments were received in this reporting 
period.

Page 102

Agenda Item 7



4.1

There was a slight reduction in the number of complaints received during this 
reporting period compared to the same period last year, and 31.9% of the 
overall number of complaints received were found to be not upheld.

Lessons learned

Complaints provide the Council with valuable feedback to develop and 
improve our services to meet the needs of our customers.  The following are 
examples of changes made by services in response to feedback from 
residents during this reporting period:

Amendments were made to the software on computers at Middleton Library. 
The change resolved password problems experienced by users and all staff 
were advised that new customers joining the library must now choose their 
own pin number and not use the last 4 digits of a membership account.

Information on the Council website concerning the provision of bins for new 
build properties was reviewed and reworded to provide more accurate 
information for residents.

The Highways Service increased the resources available to manage vehicle 
dropped crossing installations and improved an ICT issue with email capacity.  
The service also reviewed the website content to better inform customers of 
the dropped crossing procedure to manage expectations. 

Working practices for free school meals applications were reviewed based on 
feedback received from customers and information gathered from the end of 
year review. Up to date guidance was issued to all staff who deal with free 
school meals.

Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman

Details of complaints dealt with by the Ombudsman are presented in a 
separate report which is produced on receipt of the Local Government & 
Social Care Ombudsman’s Annual Review.

Alternatives Considered

None.  Information has been compiled from the complaints recording system 
used by all services to record complaints and compliments.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. None of the complaints dealt with in this reporting period had financial 
implications.

Risk and Policy Implications

Page 103



There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 
report.

Complainants have the opportunity to refer their complaint to the Local 
Government & Social Care Ombudsman for up to twelve months from 
completion of the Council’s complaints process; therefore there is a risk that 
the outcome of a future Ombudsman investigation into a complaint may 
result in a recommended financial remedy.  Complaints considered by the 
Ombudsman are reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee annually on 
receipt of the Ombudsman’s annual report.

6.

Consultation

7. Not applicable.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Carolyn Whitham, Tel: 01706 923508, 
carolyn.whitham@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 104



Appendix 1
CORPORATE COMPLAINTS 1st & 2nd QUARTERS 2019/20

The Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman’s definition of a complaint is “an 
expression of dissatisfaction about a Council service (whether that service is provided 
directly by the council or by a contractor or partner) that requires a response”

The Council’s Corporate Complaints Policy consists of a three stage process, providing a 
point of appeal at stage three arranged by the Customer Feedback Team for complainants 
who remain dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint to a service.

New complaints received

A total of 298 new complaints were received in the first half of 2019-20. As can be seen from 
the graph below, the number of complaints received by the majority of services was similar 
over the two quarters.  Although the number of complaints received by the Highways Service 
increased during the second quarter, 47% of complaints received by the service in the second 
quarter were found to be not upheld.

Details of the complaints received in the reporting period are included later in the report.

Year on year comparison

The graph below compares the total number of complaints received in the first half of 2019-
20 with the same period last year.  The usual trend is for the Council to receive the lowest 
number of complaints during the first quarter compared to any other time of the year.  As 
can be seen below, the number of complaints received in this reporting period reduced 
slightly compared to the previous year. Of the overall number of complaints received during 
this reporting period, 31.9% were found to be not upheld.

Page 105



Appendix 1

Complaints by Directorate

Details of the nature of complaints received by each Directorate can be found in the following 
tables.  The tables include details of all complaints that were either upheld or partially upheld 
together with the number of complaints that were found to be not upheld.  A number of 
complaints are reported as being ‘out of scope’.  These are complaints where it was 
established that the subject of the complaint was the responsibility of another organisation 
e.g. Rochdale Boroughwide Housing or Riverside Housing and the complaints were referred 
on to be dealt with under the organisation’s own complaints procedure.

AGILISYS

ECONOMY

NEIGH
BOURH
OODS

Service Area Nature of complaint 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr
Contact Centre Call handling 1 2

Advice given by Advisor 1 0
Call waiting times 0 3
Not upheld 2 3

 Total 4 8

Service Area Nature of complaint  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr
Planning Lack of updates re planning application 0 1

Pre-planning advice 0 1
Delay in refund of application fees 0 1

 Not upheld 3 2
Withdrawn 1 0

 Total 4 5Page 106



Appendix 1

Service Area Nature of complaint 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr
Environmental Management Missed / continual missed bins 26 22

Actions/attitude of operative 12 10
Bins not returned to collection point 10 7
Replacement caddy liners not left 5 6
Grass / shrub maintenance 3 3
Lack of response to service request 3 8
Bin schedule 2 0
Delay in installation of memorial bench 1 0
Maintenance of bowling green in park 1 0
Street cleansing 1 2
Tree maintenance 1 1
Fly tipping enforcement 1 0
Notice of bin collection access issues 1 0
New bin request 0 2
Condition of book room at crematorium 0 1
Noise from waste vehicle at 6.50am 0 1
Detritus from waste vehicle 0 1
Not upheld 17 21
Out of scope of complaints policy 2 5
Total 86 90

Service Area Nature of complaint  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr
Coroners & Registrars Manner of officer in Registrar’s Office 0 1
 Total 0 1

Service Area Nature of complaint  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr
Highways & Property Poor quality of repairs to road / footpath 2 0

Lack of notification of forthcoming works 1 0
Management of PCN process 1 0
Damage to garden from resurfacing work 1 0
Slippery surface of tactile paving 1 0
Lack of response to correspondence 1 0
Delay in processing lease application 1 0
Resurfacing work not completed 1 1
Delay in installation of dropped kerb 1 4
Lack of response to service request 1 4
Conduct of contractors 0 2
Actions of Civil Enforcement Officer 0 2
Dangerous driving of Council vehicle 0 1
Potholes not repaired 1 1
Poor condition of pavement 0 1
Not upheld 2 14
Out of scope of complaints policy 1 0

 Total 15 30

Page 107



Appendix 1

PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELLBEING

Service Area Nature of complaint 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr
Public Protection Actions of Pest Control Officer 1 0

Not upheld 1 1
 Total 2 1

RESOURCES

Service Area Nature of complaint 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr
Legal & Democratic Postal vote not received 2 0

Information given by Elections Officer 1 0
Voting registration form not received 1 0
Delay in processing lease application 1 0
Delay in responding to land search query 0 1
Not upheld 2 1
Total 7 2

Service Area Nature of complaint 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr
Revenues & Benefits Cancellation of direct debit 1 0

Advice re free school meals application 0 1
Correspondence sent to old address 0 1
Council Tax Benefit claim process 0 1
Not upheld 13 9
Out of scope of complaints policy 3 6

 Total 17 18

Complaint outcomes

The graph below shows the percentage of stage one complaints received that were either 
upheld or partially upheld during the first half of 2019/20. The overall percentage was similar 
for both quarters.

Service Area Nature of complaint  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr
Customers & Communities Information given re IT issue in library 1 0

Actions of Library Assistant 1 0
Mislaid applications for postal votes 1 0
Conduct of Enforcement Officer 0 1
Not upheld 2 1

 Total 5 2

Service Area Nature of complaint  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr
ICT Not upheld 1 0
 Total 1 0

Page 108



Appendix 1

Complaints received by Ward

Numbers of complaints reported by Ward are dependent upon customers providing their 
address details.  The graph below shows the numbers of complaints received by Ward during 
the first half of 2019-20.  It also indicates where address details have not been provided or 
the complainant resides outside of the Borough. 

Page 109



Appendix 1

As can be seen from the graph above, there were some fluctuations in the number of 
complaints received from residents in most wards over the two quarters.  There was no 
evident reason for this as the complaints related to a number of different service areas and a 
variety of issues.

Service Requests 

A large number of complaints received are in fact service requests.  A service request is an 
initial request for service or report of a fault, for example a report of a missed bin, or a pot 
hole that needs to be repaired.  Details are included below to evidence the very low numbers 
of service requests that subsequently lead to complaints.  For example, the total number of 
complaints received by Environmental Management and Highways in the first half of this year 
was 176 and 45 respectively, however; the number of service requests dealt with by both 
services during the same period was significantly higher.

Highways

Service Area Requests Q1 Requests Q2
Bridges and Structures 15 24
Highways 2 2
Highway Maintenance 567 884
Network Development 44 57
Network Management /Traffic/Road Safety 193 193
Parking Services (including School Crossings) 92 47

Total 913 1207
Page 110



Appendix 1

Environmental Management

Service Area Requests Q1 Requests Q2

New Wheelie bin request 3174 3457

Missed bin 1011 1146

General enquiry – street /waste services 314 761

Fly tipping 2093 2267

Assisted collection 46 52

Remove bin 419 369

Information/enquiry – enforcement 85 104

Bulky collection 761 764

Tree maintenance 177 208

Dead animal 32 44

Dog fouling 75 58

Untidy garden 223 242

Abandoned vehicle 12 5

Grass/shrub/hedge maintenance 173 229

Litter bin 37 46

Spillage on road 32 28

Graffiti 46 28

Sharps/drugs/paraphernalia 6 11

Trade waste 16 24

Fly posting 49 37

Ragwort/Knotweed 6 1

Travellers enquiry 1 0

Caddy liner request 29 13

Rights of Way 33 36

 
Total 8850 9930

Compliments

In addition to complaints, compliments are also received from customers and shared with the 
teams concerned.  The resident is always thanked for taking the time to contact the Council 
with their comments.

The graph below shows the total number of compliments received during the first half of 2019-
20.  

A total of 148 compliments were recorded during the first and second quarters, a selection of 
which can be found below.  

Page 111



Appendix 1

“I would like to say a massive thanks to all concerned for the efforts undertaken today by your 
street cleaning teams and all the workers for collecting and removing rubbish from around 
Duke St and Whitehall St areas in Rochdale. It is very much appreciated and so a big thanks 
to you all....including local councillors!!! Keep up the good work....it is very much needed...and 
appreciated.”

“Last night was an exceptional evening the food was equal to our home cooked meals. Still, 
have said it before and I will reiterate "I have never had a bad meal at the Town Hall" the 
layout of the room was amazing. Table decorations could only be equaled not bettered. Your 
serving staff served without being noticed, quietly and with a hint of professionalism, tables 
cleared after one course, and all the other courses served without losing any heat from the 
hot meals.”

“The shrubbery and planting in the middle of the roundabouts in Middleton are beautiful along 
with all the public gardens and also the flower pots etc. They are a credit to the gardening 
team and the manager for overseeing and organising the work. Well done. Thank you.”

“I just want to say what a great job your men are doing on the path relaying project; hard 
working, organised & polite. I have to admit I thought it would be chaotic keeping the traffic 
flowing, particularly the school traffic, but your guys have done a terrific job. Just thought I 
would let you know.”

“I would just like to compliment two of your employees on a first rate service. The two ladies 
officiated at our wedding ceremony at The Norton Grange Hotel in Castleton, they were 
absolutely brilliant, they made myself, my wife, and everyone there feel calm, but they gave 
the ceremony a sense of fun, but still kept the importance of the occasion too. I was so 
impressed by their attitude, their politeness, professionalism and their love of their job was Page 112



Appendix 1
so evident, they really were fantastic in everything they did, and I’m not the only person who 
noticed, a lot of people commented on how lovely they were, so please thank them again on 
our behalf, you have two real gems there. Thank you very much.”

“We are down babysitting our granddaughter who lives in Wardle. Today we took her to Hare 
Hill Park. What a joy to see a park in such pristine condition. Congratulations to your staff 
who obviously take great pride in what they do. The park was busy with toddlers etc. and they 
have excellent well maintained play facilities. Keep up the good work you’re putting many a 
council to shame!”

“Hello, I just wanted to say a massive thank you for all those involved in the Feelgood Festival. 
We took our children during the day who loved it even in the rain. Then we went back out in 
the evening and it was such a good night. So many people love this event, keep up your 
fantastic work.”

“The Advisor was a fantastic help and I would like to thank him. He was more than willing to 
look into my query (again) and not just pass me to other departments.”

Customer satisfaction with the process

The Customer Feedback Team monitors complaints received and recorded across the 
Council to ensure compliance with complaint policy timescales and consistency in 
implementation of the process.

During the first half of 2019-20, a total of 298 new complaints were received, and of these 
only 8 escalated to the next stage in the complaints process, indicating that the majority of 
customers were satisfied with the response and action taken by the service concerned at the 
lowest level.  

Page 113



Agenda Item

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 24th March 2020
Portfolio Neighbourhoods, 

Community & Culture
Report Author Valery White
Public/Private Document Public Document

Townships Plan 2020-2022

1. Executive Summary

1.1 The Council’s Corporate Plan 2019-2022 has now been agreed.  The process 
included carrying out a review of the Council’s values and behaviours which 
are now Proud, Passionate, Pioneering and Open.

1.2 In line with the new Corporate Plan, the Townships Plan 2020–2022 has been 
developed around the following priorities: Prosperous People and Places.

1.3 Township Chairs and Vice Chairs worked with the Portfolio Holder for 
Neighbourhoods, Community and Culture to produce the new Townships 
Plan.

2. Recommendation

2.1

2.2

2.3

That Members note the detail included in the Townships Plan 2020-2022 
appended to this report (Appendix A).

That Members note that the plan has been developed in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder, Township Chairs and Vice Chairs in line with priorities 
identified in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2019-2022.

Members are asked to approve the plan to allow the Townships to focus on 
local priorities in line with the Council’s key priorities – Prosperous People 
and Places.

3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Members were consulted on development of a new Townships Plan following 
the introduction of the new Corporate Plan.

3.2 The Townships Plan identifies priorities determined by each Township’s 
Councillors as a focus for action over the next two years. This plan gathers 
aspirations and ideas together as a focus for decision makers, Council 
Services, partner agencies and the voluntary and community sector active in 
the Rochdale Borough.

Page 114

Agenda Item 8



3.3

3.4

The Townships Plan 2017-2019 is due to expire. The Townships Plan 2020-
2022 includes objectives identified to meet the priorities identified by each of 
the five Townships. It will also guide and direct and detail the use of devolved 
budgets, including Township Revenue Funds, for the financial years 2019/20, 
2020/21 and 2021/22.

The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework. The plan is 
a live document that can evolve and change to meet new opportunities and 
initiatives, and can be updated to reflect changes as we move forward.

4. Key Points for Consideration

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. Township funds are 
monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring reports will continue to 
be presented to future committees on a regular basis.

5. Risk and Policy Implications

5.1 There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 
report.

5.2 There are no legal implications arising as a result of this proposal.

6. Consultation

6.1 Portfolio Holder, Township Chairs, Township Vice Chairs and
Township Committees:
Heywood
Middleton
Pennines
Rochdale North
Rochdale South

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Valery White
valery.white@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924858

Page 115



1

    

                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

Townships Plan

2020 - 2022

The Townships plan will focus on 
local Township priorities in line with 
the Council’s new values – Proud, 
Passionate, Pioneering and open

Townships are crucial to developing 
the ‘Place’ agenda, facilitating local 
decision making and have devolved 
powers in relation to a number of 
Council Services, including – 

 Environmental Management 
(Street Services and Clean & 
Green Team)

 Highways & Engineering 
(Highways Investment 
Programme, Highways Capital 
Programme)

 Community Centres
 Libraries
 Development Control (Empty 

Properties, S.106 Agreements)
 Township Funds

Devolution of the above services to 
Townships contributes to the 
achievement of corporate objectives.  

Chief Executive: Steve Rumbelow   

Lead Cabinet Member: Councillor 
Janet Emsley

www.rochdale.gov.uk

Townships Key Priorities

1. To ensure coordination and support in connection with the performance and delivery 
of Council Services to each individual Township.

2. To allocate devolved funding at a local level to projects that respond to the needs of 
local communities.

3. To promote Community Development and support development of Community 
Projects to empower local people within their own communities.

4. To respond to issues raised in the public arena by means of a structure of both 
formal and informal meetings.

5. To work with Council Services and our partners to facilitate local decision making, to 
support the aspirations of the Borough’s residents, businesses and visitors, with 
additional focus on driving forward the Public Service Reform agenda on a Township 
basis.

6. To consider the further devolution of powers, services and budgets to Townships.

The Council has three key values to deliver our vision; a vision that directs and underpins 
everything we do:

Prosperous People and Places

P
age 116



2

Heywood Township Key Activities 

Ref Priority Examples Link to corporate priority

HT1 Cleaner, Greener and Safer 
Environment

 Contribute to efforts to remove carbon dioxide from the 
atmosphere to address the climate emergency.

 Reduce the number of grot spots.

 Maintain Green Flag status.

 Support community safety initiatives that tackle crime and 
disorder.

 Support a safe and efficient strategic highways network.

 Redesign and improve traffic flow through the Town Centre.

Prosperous People & Places

HT2 Thriving Community

 Work with partners, businesses, voluntary sector and the 
community to strengthen links, encourage participation and 
encourage pride in our Township.

 Support health and wellbeing initiatives and sporting activities.

 Support choice and engagement for our children and young 
people.

 Support our Armed Forces Family.

 Support the range of Township events to increase community 
participation and engagement.

Prosperous People & Places

HT3 Economic Prosperity

 Support Heywood business initiatives.

 Support, encourage and promote new and existing businesses.

 Support and promote ongoing events to increase footfall for local 
businesses.

Prosperous People & Places

Budgets
Heywood Township funds can be used to offer support to organisations and projects that are of direct benefit to the community, environment 
and economy of Heywood.  Any local constituted community organisation can request funding support from Heywood Township for project 
support.  Special consideration will be given to groups without their own funds/with limited alternative means and those in areas not benefiting 
from other funding opportunities.  All projects must show how they will address the Heywood Township priorities.

P
age 117



3

Middleton Township Key Activities
Ref Priority Examples Link to corporate priority

MT1 Children & Young People

 Encourage engagement in sport/arts/culture/heritage via Township 
grants.

 Support the Youth Service in events and activities.
 Work with partner agencies to provide sports, arts and outdoor 

activities.
 Contribute to improving the health and wellbeing of children and 

young people in Middleton Township through schemes such as 
Holiday@Home and Fit, Read and Feed.

 Provide young children with a healthy start by supporting breast 
feeding in the Town.

 Continue to support our Armed Forces Family.

Prosperous People & Places

MT2 Cleaner, Greener & Safer 
Environment

 Create and maintain good quality open spaces, reduce grot spots 
and continue to utilise the Clean & Green Team.

 Support groups looking to apply for funding to increase the 
‘recognition’ of open spaces through schemes such as Green Flags.

 Encourage groups to apply for funding for ‘Grow & Eat’ schemes 
such as orchards in community open space facilities.

 Contribute to efforts to remove carbon dioxide from the atmosphere 
to address the climate emergency, including improving air quality 
through cleaner air schemes such as a ‘tree corridor.

 Support ‘Friends of’ groups to encourage pride and responsibility.
 Increase enforcement activity around environmental crime.
 Work with partners to reduce crime and disorder, and the 

perception of crime.

Prosperous People & Places

MT3 Tourism & Prosperity

 Promote tourism via the THI scheme and historic buildings within 
the town.

 Support events and activities that encourage visitors to Middleton’s 
retail offer and increase economic prosperity.

 Encourage and support further regeneration projects via Township 
funds. 

 Encourage local groups to apply for funding for cultural and heritage 
projects.

Prosperous People & Places

Budgets
Middleton Township funds can be used to offer support to organisations and projects that are of direct benefit to the community and the 
environment of Middleton.  Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, third sector organisations and forums/working parties are invited to 
submit projects on relevant application forms for funding from Middleton Township funds.

P
age 118



4

Pennines Township Key Activities

Ref Priority Examples Link to corporate priority

PT1 Focussing on our Communities and 
our Young People

 Continue to facilitate existing community based 
meetings/forums.

 Promote and support public facilities (including libraries) as an 
integral part of our communities.

 Actively promote health and wellbeing in the Township.

 Support children and young people to achieve their full potential.

 Support community initiatives to celebrate our Township.

 Continue to support our Armed Forces Family.

Prosperous People & Places

PT2 Cleaner, Greener & Safer 
Environment

 Provide support to community groups to encourage pride and 
ownership of our public spaces.

 Reduce grot spots and utilise the Clean & Green Team.

 Support and encourage events in our parks and green spaces.

 Contribute to efforts to remove carbon dioxide from the 
atmosphere to address the climate emergency, and actively 
encourage the community to reduce their impact on the 
environment.

 Work with partners to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour.

 Actively work to minimise flood risk and support community 
resilience.

Prosperous People & Places

PT3 Regeneration

 Work with partners to promote Pennines Township as an 
attractive and welcoming place to visit, live and work.

 Promote the Township’s tourism offer and wider visitor economy.

 Work with businesses, individuals and groups to improve 
information, communication and promotion of events and 
activities.

Prosperous People & Places

Budgets
Pennines Township funds can be used to offer support to projects and organisations that are of direct benefit to the community and environment 
of the Pennines area.  Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, third sector organisations and area forums can submit projects on 
relevant application forms for funding from Pennines Township funds.

P
age 119



5

Rochdale North Township Key Activities

Ref Priority Examples Link to corporate priority

RTN1 Communities First

 Continued development and review of area forums, focussed agendas, 
representative of their communities.

 Contribute financially to, and support, events within the Township.

 Support improvements in delivery of the Health & Social Care agenda.

 Continue to support our Armed Forces Family.

 Support a wider range of community groups in the development of 
community projects.

Prosperous People & Places

RTN2 Cleaner, Greener & Safer 
Environment

 Contribute to efforts to remove carbon dioxide from the atmosphere to 
address the climate emergency.

 Support Community Safety initiatives that tackle crime and disorder.

 Continue to develop new sites, such as Syke Common, to work towards 
Green Flag status.

 Encourage communities to take responsibility for alleyways and for 
suitable land and green spaces, to promote pride and ownership.

 Work with partners to fund/develop initiatives to improve recycling rates.

 Support and develop the Borough strategy for flood risk management.

Prosperous People & Places

RTN3 Regeneration & Prosperity

 Work in partnership with Rochdale South Township to support 
improvements in the Town Centre.

 Support and promote greater connectivity that increases footfall within our 
retail areas.

 Assist with funding to make environmental improvements throughout the 
Township to the benefit of our residents.

Prosperous People & Places

Budgets
Rochdale North Township’s vision is to create a friendly, clean and safe Township characterised by harmonious and diverse communities.  
Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, third sector organisations and area forums can submit projects for funding to achieve these aims 
on relevant application forms for Rochdale North Township funds.

P
age 120



6

  Rochdale South Township Key Activities

Ref Priority Examples Link to corporate priority

RTS1 Communities First

 Development of area forums, focussed agendas, representative of their 
communities.

 Encourage more self-reliance and engagement in the community to 
improve health and social care in the Township.

 Contribute financially to, and support, community groups and events within 
the Township.

 Facilitate consultation events to engage communities in decision making at 
a local level.

 Support the provision of facilities (meeting places, sports training) for 
young people.

 Continue to support our Armed Forces Family.

Prosperous People & Places

RTS2 Cleaner, Greener & Safer 
Environment

 Contribute to efforts to remove carbon dioxide from the atmosphere to 
address the climate emergency.

 Support Community Safety initiatives that tackle crime and disorder.

 Encourage communities to take responsibility for suitable land and green 
spaces, to promote pride and ownership.

 Work with partners to fund/develop initiatives to improve recycling rates.

Prosperous People & Places

RTS3 Regeneration & Prosperity

 Work in partnership with Rochdale North Township to support 
improvements in the Town Centre.

 Support a wider range of community groups, with a particular focus on 
education, I.T. skills and welfare advice.

 Work with RBC Highways Service to deliver traffic schemes in response to 
our communities’ priorities.

 Assist with funding to make improvements to local roads, increasing road 
safety.

Prosperous People & Places

Budgets
Rochdale South Township’s vision is to create a friendly, clean and safe Township characterised by harmonious and diverse communities.  
Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, third sector organisations and area forums can submit projects for funding to achieve these aims 
on relevant application forms for Rochdale South Township funds.

P
age 121



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 24th March 2020
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Rosemary Barker
Public/Private Document Public

Health Related Absence Q1 & Q2 2019/2020

Executive Summary

1. The report provides first and second quarter health related absence figures to 
Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

The first quarter health related absence figures (April – June 2019) indicate 
that the overall level for the Council was 2.10 days per FTE, and 2.11 days per 
FTE in the second quarter (July - September 2019).  

The total days lost for April – September 2019 was 4.17 days per FTE, 
compared to 4.51 days lost in the same period in 2018/19.  

Recommendation
2. It is recommended that Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee note the first and second quarter positions for the Council for 
2019/20.

Reason for Recommendation

3. To provide Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee with 
an update of the health related absence data.

Key Points for Consideration

4. The first quarter health related absence figures indicate that the overall level for 
the Authority was 2.10 days per FTE (a reduction of 0.12 from the same quarter 
in 2018/19), of which 1.34 days (64%) were due to long term sickness absence, 
which was again a reduction of 0.11 days from the same period last year where 
1.45 (65%) days were lost due to long term absence.

Page 122

Agenda Item 9



Short term absence has seen a slight decrease from the previous year as 0.76 
days (36%) were lost this year, compared to 0.77 (35%) days last year.

The second quarter health related absence figures show a slight increase 
compared to the same period last year, in that 2.11 days were lost per FTE, an 
increase of 0.04 days from the same period in 2018/19 (2.07 days lost).

Long term absence has reduced in the second quarter with 1.38 days (65%) of 
the total days lost (a reduction of 0.08 days compared to 2018/19).  Short term 
absence has therefore increased with 0.74 days (35%) lost to short term absence 
(an increase of 0.13 days compared to 2018/19). 

Overall, when compared to the first half of 2018/19, the position has improved by 
0.34 days, with the total days lost at 4.17 days per FTE for this year, compared to 
4.51 days last year.

Table 1 show the first and second quarter absence data per Directorate.

Quarter 1 absence data 

(April – June 2019)

Quarter 2 absence data

 (July – September 2019)

Directorate Days 
lost to 
long 
term 

absence

Days lost 
to short 

term 
absence

Total 
Days lost

Days 
lost 
per 
FTE

Days 
lost to 
long 
term 

absence

Days 
lost to 
short 
term 

absence

Total 
Days 
lost

Days 
lost 
per 
FTE

Executive 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Adult Care 
Service 564.10 228.50 792.60 2.33 387.34 313.78 701.12 2.05

Public Health 27.00 4.00 31.00 1.63 45.00 12.00 57.00 2.83
Children’s 
Services 710.54 470.06 1180.60 1.79 877.12 502.91 1380.03 2.03

Economy 36.38 33.98 70.36 0.85 31.00 28.54 59.54 0.76
Neighbourhoods 1420.23 816.85 2237.08 2.47 1650.74 720.79 2371.53 2.60
Resources 264.55 170.79 435.34 1.75 163.68 112.48 276.16 1.08
Total 3022.80 1724.18 4746.98 2.10 3154.88 1690.50 4845.38 2.11

Schools 4517.80 2368.89 6886.69 2.01 3127.97 1627.56 4755.53 1.37

TABLE 1

Table 2 below shows the absence data from April to September 19 cumulatively.

Quarter 1 and 2 absence data (April – September 2019)

Directorate
Days lost to 

long term 
absence

Days lost to 
short term 
absence

Total Days 
lost FTE’s Days lost 

per FTE

Executive 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.89 0.00
Adult Care Service 927.19 552.51 1479.70 342.39 4.32

Page 123



Public Health 72.00 16.00 88.00 20.17 4.36
Children’s Services 1647.12 907.79 2554.91 678.50 3.77
Economy 67.38 39.78 107.16 78.50 1.37
Neighbourhoods 3148.54 1488.44 4636.98 913.27 5.08
Resources 428.23 259.19 687.42 255.73 2.69
Total 6290.46 3263.71 9554.17 2291.46 4.17

Schools 7563.29 4009.81 11573.10 3479.74 3.33

TABLE 2

Based upon an analysis of the data as at the end of quarter 2, long term absence 
accounted for the majority of absences.  Stress/depression, was the top reason 
for long term absence, with Operative/post operative and Other muscular skeletal 
problems being the other 2 top reasons. This is similar to the top reasons for the 
same period in 2018/19, however Back and neck problems was also one of the 
main reasons for absence.

Short term absence accounted for 34% of absences, with Stress/depress being 
the top reason for short term absence, and Colds/viral infections and Gastric, 
stomach, kidney, liver accounting for the other 2 top reasons.  These were the 
same top 3 reasons for absence in the same period in 2018/19.

This report notes absence for the Council has reduced compared to the same 
period last year.  Each Directorate is continuing to monitor and manage absence 
to meet the challenging targets set for the year.  As at the end of quarter two, the 
number of days lost per FTE is 4.17 against a half year target of 4.23 (annual 
target is 8.45 days per FTE). 

The HR Service continues to provide strategic advice and support to Services in 
the development of action plans targeted at the needs of each Directorate.  The 
HR Service also continues to provide training and support to managers across 
the Authority on effective absence management, whilst also providing support to 
staff.

Alternatives Considered

As this is part of the Council’s performance management process, there are no 
other alternatives. 

Costs and Budget Summary

5. Any financial implications arising from sickness absence are reported by 
Directorates through the Revenue Finance Updates reports presented to 
Cabinet on a quarterly basis.

Risk and Policy Implications

Page 124



Significant health related absence will impact on the Council`s capacity to 
deliver its corporate objectives, therefore effective management of health 
related absence is a whole organisation responsibility.

6.

Consultation

7. In compiling this report, Directors and Assistant Directors have been advised 
on performance relating to their service areas. Trade Unions have also been 
provided with information.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. N/A N/A

For Further Information Contact: Rosemary Barker,  
rosemary.barker@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 125



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 31st March 2020
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Stuart Smith (Resources 
Directorate)

Public/Private Document Public

Finance Update Report P10

Executive Summary

To inform Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 
Council’s forecast 2019/20 financial position as at the end of January 2020.

1.1 The Finance Update Report contains detail of the following:

 The forecast Revenue outturn is a breakeven position, however it should 
be noted that this has been achieved after the application of significant 
sums from the Equalisation Reserve and a refund from the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) in relation the Waste Disposal 
Levy.

 An update of the Savings target of £0.135m, as part of the Revenue 
budget 2019/20.

 Forecast Capital spend of £104.281m after re-phasing of £4.288m, 
£0.961m rephase reversals and £1m future year use of budget.

 The forecast Collection Fund Position for 2019/20 is a surplus of 
£1.994m comprising:

 £1.359m surplus relating to Business Rates
 £0.635m surplus relating to Council Tax

Recommendation

2.1 Cabinet notes the forecast 2019/20 budget positions for Revenue, Savings, 
Capital and the Collection Fund as at the end of January 2020.

2.2 Cabinet approves the Revenue Budget Pressure Fund requests for 2019/20 
and future years totalling £0.157m detailed in section 4.1.4. Members are also 
asked to approve the use of the Budget Pressures fund to meet any costs 
related to the Coronavirus issue that are not met from Government funding.

2.3 Cabinet notes the net Capital re-phasing and variances detailed in section 
4.3.2.

Page 126

Agenda Item 10



2.4 Cabinet notes the Capital budget increase of £0.568m in 4.3.3.

2.5 Cabinet approves the Capital budget switches of £0.246m in 4.3.4.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1. Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 
authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring the financial 
resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 
Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early identification of variations 
against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action.

This report provides an overview of the forecast 2019/20 financial position for 
the Council and focuses on the position as at the end of January 2020.  

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Revenue Budget 2019/20

4.1.1. The budget set by Budget Council on 26th February 2019 was £216.221m. 

The Revenue Budget is £215.621m as at the end of January 2020 with no 
changes in this reporting period.

Approved by When Reason for change Amount (£m)
Budget Council Feb-19 Approved budget 216.221

Jul-19 Reduction in S31 relief -0.600
GRAND TOTAL 215.621

4.1.2 The overall position taking account of the projections currently being forecast 
by services as at the end of January 2020 is a breakeven position, which 
includes a contribution from the Equalisation Reserve for the pooled fund 
pressures and a refund from GMCA in relation to the Waste Disposal Levy. The 
value of the contribution from the Equalisation Reserve has been adjusted to 
reflect the improved reporting position for Neighbourhoods and Children’s 
Services. However it should be noted that some of the in-year savings are 
subject to budget carry forward and reserve applications which have not yet 
been approved.

Please see Appendix A for details of budget allocations and forecast Revenue 
Outturn Position.

4.1.3 The major (≥ £0.250m) variations to controllable budget, by service, are 
detailed below:-

Adult Care: £1.233m overspend offset by an increased contribution from the 
Health & Social Care Pooled Budget

The Adult Care service is experiencing financial pressures from the number 
and costs of care packages for service users. There is a further pressure from 

Page 127



the provision of statutory Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards assessments. 
These pressures are partially mitigated by in-year savings from staff turnover 
and vacancies.

The remaining net pressure of £1.233m for Adult Care budgets in 2019/20 will 
be wholly met by an additional contribution from the Health & Social Care 
pooled budget.

Children’s Services - £6.553m overspend with £4.138m being apportioned to 
the Dedicated Schools Grant Reserve relating to Special Educational Needs 
and Disability (SEND) 

Children's Services are currently forecasting a pressure of £6.553m which 
relates mainly to External Residential Placements and SEND pressures. 

£2.765m is attributable to external residential placements, with the 2018/19 
growth in cared for children continuing to be cared for in 2019/20. Throughout 
the first three quarters of 2019/20 there has been a small steady reduction in 
the number of cared for children. From 1st April 2019 - 31st January 2020 this 
equates to a net reduction of 40 cared for children and 71 children subject to a 
Child Protection Plan. 

There is a significant pressure of £4.112m within the High Needs -Dedicated 
Schools Grant. The pressures are in relation to a continued rise in numbers of 
children with education health care plans and children requiring SEND 
support. The growth in numbers is not unique to Rochdale, this is a national 
trend with the majority of Local Authorities now facing pressures on their High 
Needs DSG.  This overspend is subject to a recovery plan which has to be 
agreed with the Department For Education.

Neighbourhoods £1.391m In-Year saving

The forecast in-year saving relates mainly to Budget Carry Forward requests 
and proposed contributions to reserves to support ongoing Directorate 
priorities that have yet to be approved.
 
Financial Control - £4.286m In-Year saving

The forecast in-year saving relates to a refund from the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority relating to the Waste Disposal Levy and interest savings. 
The interest savings are due to the borrowing requirement being funded 
through internal borrowing with nil cost and the forecast reduction in capital 
expenditure.

Integrated Pooled Budget Contribution - £0.823m Overspend

The Council and the CCG have made the additional contributions approved at 
December Cabinet. The remaining balance reported is a £0.823m pressure. 
The Council will contribute an additional £0.823m to support delivery of the 
commissioning functions for 2019/20 with a corresponding reduction to the 
Council’s contribution in 2020/21. The Council will only make this contribution 

Page 128



if the pooled fund is unable to identify alternative sources of funding or 
savings to bridge the remaining £0.823m pressure in 2019/20.

4.1.4 Budget Pressures

Budget pressure requests are detailed in the following table:

Ongoing
£m

One Off
£m

Ongoing
£m

One Off
£m

Opening Balance 0.393 0.129

Economy -0.004
An ongoing request of £0.004m additional funding is requested from 2020/21 to fund 
the planned spend in relation to the Town Twinning Project.

Neighbourhoods -0.058
Request to fund Full Fibre implementation to employ a Project Officer. 
At this stage in the project the 2019/20 costs are not finalised and are mainly expected 
to be incurred in 2020/21.

Resources -0.008
An on-going budget pressure relating to the regrade of the Business Partner role 
within HR which has been approved from grade 9 to grade 10. Initially the additional 
cost will be £0.008m but when the top of grade is reached this will be £0.024m.

Resources -0.015

A one off request is made for budget pressures funding relating to the decision made 
at GMCA Wider Leadership Team for each Greater Manchester Council to commit 
£0.015m budget to implement the proposed “Greater Manchester Working Together” 
programme.

Neighbourhoods -0.072
The previously approved budget pressure for the loss of income in Facilities 
Management due to schools no longer contracting with Rochdale Council has been 
quantified for 2019/20 at £0.072m ongoing.

Neighbourhoods -0.183

A report was previously presented to Cabinet on the Independent Domestic Violence 
Advocacy Service report and relevant associated budget pressures were approved. The 
budget pressure will fund the implementation of the project for high risk victims of 
domestic violence.

Neighbourhoods -0.050
Budget pressures were approved at January 2020 Cabinet for the feasibility costs 
associated with the Climate Change Project.

Resources 0.062
Request for budget pressures funding is made to fund the Legal Shared Service.
This had previously been approved in 2018/19 at £0.140m therefore the £0.062m of 
one-off funding has been added back to the available one-off balance.

Resources -0.028 0.028
The budget pressure request for ME Learning previously approved for 2020/21 of 
£0.040m is being split over 2019/20 and 2020/21. £0.028m is being claimed in 2019/20.

Closing Balance 2019/20 0.313 0.163

Previously Approved at Separate Cabinet Meetings / Other Changes to Budget Pressures

Budget Pressure Requests:
2019/20 2020/21

Service Narrative

Public Health are involved in work relating to the ongoing Coronavirus issue. 
Any costs incurred that are not funded by the Government will be met from 
the Budget Pressures fund. 

4.2 Savings Update 2019/20
4.2.1 The total savings target for 2019/20 is £0.135m and Services have not 

identified any issues.

Page 129



4.3      Capital Budget 2019/20

The current 2019/20 Capital Budget is £104.281m.  The table below shows a 
summary of the movements:

£m £m £m
CAPITAL BUDGET AT NOVEMBER 2019 106.040 89.389 26.430

Rephasing requested to end of January 2020 (4.288) 4.288 -

Rephasing reversals 0.961 (0.961) -

2020/21 Budget Brought Forward to 2019/20 1.000 (1.000) -

Capital Budget Increases 0.568 -  - 

CAPITAL BUDGET AT JANUARY 2020 104.281 91.716 26.430

2019/20 2021/222020/21

4.3.1 Capital Budget Changes

4.3.2 Capital Rephasing

The major (>250k) rephasing requests / variances are detailed below, by 
Directorate and Scheme:

Children’s Rephasing of £1.476m including:

 £1.000m Schools Capital Condition Programme due to changes to the 
scheduled 2019/20 programme, budget will be used to fund the 
2020/21 programme,

 £0.441m Special Provision Capital Fund due to ongoing capital 
investments in the provision for pupils with special educational needs 
and disabilities at Shawclough Primary, which are ongoing, and are 
planned to continue with the Autistic Secondary level at Falinge in 
2020/21.

Economy Rephasing of £1.116m including:

 £0.250m Heywood South/Junction 19 to provide match funding for a 
future Greater Manchester Evergreen Grant.

 £0.250m Rochdale Town Centre 3 Year Strategy budgets due to 
delays in delivery with expectation to be delivered in 2020/21

 (£0.300m) of previously rephased budget to be brought back into 
2019/20 to cover the costs of enabling design works.

Page 130



Neighbourhoods Rephasing of £0.735m including:

 £0.931m of Vehicle Replacement Programme budget is requested to 
be rephased to allow the purchase of vehicles in 2020/21 due to 
manufacturers not holding the necessary stock of vehicles required.

 (£0.496m) budget rephase reversal on the Highways Investment 
Programme as the scheme has been progressing well and is ahead of 
previously anticipated progress. 

The Chief Finance Officer has approved the requests for rephasing.
Members are asked to note that Neighbourhoods Service Highways 
Maintenance Scheme has progressed ahead of schedule resulting in an over 
spend of £1.000m. 

Members are asked to approve the funding of this overspend from budget 
brought forward from the 2020/21 Capital Programme for the Highways 
Maintenance Scheme.

Please see Appendix B for a detailed list of all rephasing requests.

4.3.3   Capital Budget Increases

Children’s Service - £0.310m of budget received for the Special Provision 
Capital Fund in December 2019.

Neighbourhoods Services - £0.058m S106 contributions for various contracts 
within the Service.

Adult Care - £0.200m of Capital Grant Reserves to top up the Disabled 
Facilities Grant budget approved at Integrated Commissioning Board.

4.3.4   Capital Funding Switches

Neighbourhoods: 

 £0.095m of ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme is requested to be 
switched to Windows 10 scheme to ensure project delivery due to 
additional costs.

 £0.100m of Waste Bin Replacement Programme budget is requested to 
be switched to New Cemetery Sites for works being undertaken to 
replace the cremators at Rochdale Cemetery.

 £0.031m of budget from S106 is requested to be transferred to the Asset 
Management scheme to facilitate project completion.

 £0.020m of S106 budget is requested to be transferred to the Developer 
Contributions Highways S106 to fund the Highways scheme. 

Page 131



4.3.5 Capital Receipts

The table following shows the forecast movements in the Capital Receipts 
Reserve during 2019/20, and provisionally for 2020/21 to 2021/22:

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

£m £m £m

Capital Receipts balance as at 1st April 2019 10.187 2.167 0.000

Use of Capital Receipts to fund 2019/20 Capital Programme, including prior year schemes 
rephased into 2019/20 (6.920) - -
Use of Capital Receipts to fund provisional 2020/21 and 2021/22 Capital Programmes, and 
2019/20 rephasing into future years - (0.010) 0.000

Earmarked use of receipts to fund other future commitments (3.647) (4.287) (0.500)

Capital Receipts income 2.546 2.130 0.500

Forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts balance as at 31st March 2020 2.167 0.000 0.000

Description

The forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts Reserve balance as at the end of 
2021/22 is currently £0.000m as all capital receipt income is committed.

4.4     Collection Fund

4.4.1 The forecast surplus on the Collection Fund as at 31st March 2020, and the 
allocation of the closing surplus between precepting authorities is shown in 
the table below:

The forecast Collection Fund Position for 2019/20 is a surplus of 1.994m 
comprising:

 £1.359m surplus relating to Business Rates
 £0.635m surplus relating to Council Tax.

4.4.2   The Council’s share of the forecast Collection Fund surplus as at 31st

 March 2020 is £1.886m.

Page 132



4.4.3  The Council’s 2020/21 General Fund budget set at Budget Council in 
February 2020 included an estimated 2019/20 Collection Fund surplus of 
£1.668m. Any difference between the estimated 2019/20 surplus and the 
actual 2019/20 surplus will be held in the Collection Fund in 2020/21. 

4.4.4   The main areas of overall variance to budget are:

Business Rates:

Explanation of variance
Variation to 

budget, £'000

Forecast increased Business Rates gross income, reduced Empty 
Property and Discretionary Relief given, partially offset by forecast 
increased Small Business Rates and Mandatory Charitable reliefs. 

(1,389)

Forecast reduced charge relating to the bad debt provision. (131)

Forecast increased Renewable Energy scheme income to be 
transferred to the Council's General Fund

93

Actual surplus brought forward from 2018/19 is £68k lower than had 
been forecast as part of the 2019/20 Budget process. 

68

2019/20 forecast surplus (1,359)

Council Tax:

Explanation of variance
Variation to 

budget, £'000

Forecast reduced Council Tax gross income, partially offset by 
increased income from Empty Property premium, reduced 
discounts and prior year adjustments. Residential housing 
developments have not been completed as quickly as had been 
predicted as part of the 2019/20 budget setting process.

767

Forecast reduced level of Local Council Tax Support discount given. (760)

Forecast reduced charge relating to the bad debt provision. (457)

Actual surplus brought forward from 2018/19 is £185k higher than 
had been forecast as part of the 2019/20 Budget process. 

(185)

2019/20 forecast surplus (635)

4.4.5   In 2019/20 the Council continues to be part of a pilot for the 100% retention of
Business Rates, along with other Greater Manchester authorities.

The forecast 2019/20 benefit from the 100% Business Rates Retention scheme 
pilot has been calculated to be £5.598m, based on an agreed formula within 

Page 133



Greater Manchester. 50% of the benefit will be paid to GMCA, and the 
remaining 50% will be retained by the Council, and transferred to a reserve.

4.5 Alternatives considered

4.5.1 Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is critical 
to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and are 
targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. The main body of the report contains the overview of the forecast 2019/20 
Revenue, Capital, Savings and Collection Fund position at the end of 
January 2020.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are no major legal implications arising as a result of this report except 
to note that debts that are recoverable can be enforced by court action in 
accordance with the court procedure rules.

The use of reserves to address the pressures within the Pooled Fund is a 
one off solution which cannot be sustained into future years. This risk is 
currently being mitigated by the development and implementation of a 
savings programme to deliver a recurrent solution to the pooled fund 
pressures.

The use of Dedicated School Grant Reserve to fund SEND expenditure has 
created a deficit position and a recovery plan will be developed to address 
this.

Demand in Children’s Services continues to increase; a 5 year strategy has 
been developed to support the management of this pressure.

Unresolved appeals against the revaluation assessments for 2005, 2010 and 
2017 cause uncertainty and financial risk for the Business Rates income 
retained by the Council. The situation is monitored on a monthly basis to 
ensure that any changes in the trend for successful appeals are recognised 
due to the future impact on Business Rates income and the impact for the 
provision for any backdated elements.

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6 The VOA alters rating assessments if new information comes to light 
indicating that the valuation is inaccurate. These could relate to a demolition, 
new property builds or other physical changes to a property. The number of 

Page 134



6.7

6.8

alterations, financial impact and timing of the revaluations are not within the 
control of the Council.

The future level of collection of both Business Rates and Council Tax debt 
is a potential financial risk. Collection performance is being monitored on a 
monthly basis to ensure that debt is recovered as efficiently and effectively 
as possible, and so that any trends may be highlighted and action taken as 
necessary.

There is an on-going risk that issues decided nationally by the VOA 
could potentially impact on Rochdale BC’s Business Rates income.

Consultation

7. All services engage with the production of the service based financial 
information within this report. The Leadership Team, the Leader, Cabinet 
Member for Finance, and Opposition Portfolio holder for Finance have been 
informed of the forecast 2019/20 financial position of the Council and its 
implications for future years. The report is presented to the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 24th March 2020.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. For further information about this 
report or access to any 
background papers contact 
Stuart Smith

No1 Riverside Floor 2 

For Further Information Contact: Stuart Smith, 
Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
Tel : 01706 924196

Page 135

mailto:Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix A - GENERAL FUND REVENUE ACCOUNT SUMMARY 2019/20

CURRENT POSITION AS AT END OF JANUARY 2020

Directorate/ Detail
Budget 
Council

Virements/
Contingency Current Budget

Service and 
Corporate 

Uncontrollables

Current 
Controllable
Approved 

Net 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn

In Year 
Saving/

(Overspend)

Previous 
Monitoring 

Report 
(January 
Cabinet)

Movement 
Since January 

Cabinet

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Adult Care 15,415 1,114 16,529 4,046 12,483 12,483 - - -
Children's 21,585 5,078 26,663 19,049 7,614 10,029 (2,415) (2,947) 532-
Economy 15,993 77 16,070 755 15,315 15,475 (160) (202) 42-
Neighbourhoods 52,413 3,002 55,415 1,281 54,134 52,743 1,391 (207) 1,598-
Public Health and Wellbeing 8,206 211 8,417 1,889 6,528 6,528 - - -
Resources 8,222 (340) 7,882 (3,692) 11,574 11,490 84 323 (239)
TOTAL GENERAL SERVICES SPENDING 121,834 9,142 130,976 23,328 107,648 108,748 (1,100) (3,033) 1,933
Integrated Pool Budget Contribution 87,159 8,508 95,667 - 95,667 96,490 (823) (823) 0
TOTAL POOLED BUDGETS 87,159 8,508 95,667 - 95,667 96,490 (823) (823) 0
Finance Control: Corporately Held Budgets 1,399 (6,999) (5,600) (20,623) 15,023 10,737 4,286 4,370 (84)
Finance Control: Transformation Fund 4,703 191 4,894 - 4,894 4,894 - - -
Transfer to Equalisation Reserve - (6,700) (6,700) - (6,700) (4,337) (2,363) (514) (1,849)
Dedicated School Grant Reserve - (4,138) (4,138) - (4,138) (4,138) - - -
Finance Control: Budget Pressures 1,126 (604) 522 - 522 522 - - -
TOTAL FINANCE CONTROL SPENDING 7,228 (18,250) (11,022) (20,623) 9,601 7,678 1,923 3,856 (1,933)

NET EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS 216,221 (600) 215,621 2,705 212,916 212,916 0 0 0

Note the variance shown in Neighbourhood’s forecast is subject to Carry Forward and Reserve request approvals

P
age 136



APPENDIX B – CAPITAL REPHASING REQUESTS
Directorate Scheme

Amount 
£'000

Reason for re-phase

Children’s Schools Capital Condition Programme          1,000 Due to changes to the scheduled 2019/20 programme, budget will be used to fund the 2020/21 programme,

Children’s Special Provision Capital Fund              441 
Ongoing capital investments in the provision for pupils with special educational needs and disabilities at 
Shawclough Primary, which are ongoing, and are planned to continue with the Autistic Secondary level at 
Falinge in 2020/21.

Children’s Early Years Capital Grant                19 Delays in the provision of information from childcare providers.

Children’s Healthy Pupils Capital                16 Delays in scheme.

Economy Definitive Rights of Way                52 Delays in scheme.

Economy Stakehill Industrial Estate                40 Fund environmental works planned for 2020/21.

Economy East Lancashire Railways              200 Align the budgets with associated Transport for Greater Manchester Tram/Train project.

Economy Heywood South/Junction 19              250 Provide match funding for a future Greater Manchester Evergreen Grant.

Economy Railways Strategy Park & Ride                90 Develop a combined scheme with Network Rail.

Economy Middleton Town Centre Phase 3 Scheme                86 Delays in the delivery of the Hopwood Hall emergency works project.

Economy Town Centre East Feasibility              125 Cover costs for future fees and asset management,

Economy Town Hall Adaptation & Restoration (165) Re-phased back from 2020/21 due to delivery of scheme progression.

Economy Rochdale Market              200 Cover potential future works to the building in 2020/21.

Economy Town Centre Scheme              150 Cover costs associated with contracts in 2020/21.

Economy Rochdale Town Centre 3 Year Strategy              250 Delays in delivery with expectation to be delivered in 2020/21

Economy Hopwood Hall Refurbishment                13 Delays in resolving access issues in 2019/20.

Economy Middleton Masterplan                17 Scheme will complete in 2020/21.

Economy Heywood Masterplan                   8 Scheme will complete in 2020/21

Economy Town Centre Residential Strategy              100 Scheme is on hold awaiting completion of the Town Centre Traffic Model

Economy Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 (300) Previously re-phased budget to be brought back into 2019/20 to cover the costs of enabling design works.

Neighbourhoods ICT Programme (Staff)                24 Re-phased for ongoing project work

P
age 137



Directorate Scheme
Amount 
£'000

Reason for re-phase

Neighbourhoods Vehicle Replacement Programme              931 
Allow the purchase of vehicles in 2020/21 due to manufacturers not holding the necessary stock of vehicles 
required.

Neighbourhoods Allotments                50 Requested to be re-phased due to delays in planning permission to enable the project to continue.

Neighbourhoods Customer Transformation Budget              226 Enable the scheme to continue in 2020/21.

Neighbourhoods Highways Investment (496) Re-phase reversal as the scheme has been progressing well and is ahead of previously anticipated progress.

         3,327 Total Rephasing at Period 10

P
age 138



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

Who are we?

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 11 Members 
(reflecting the Council’s political balance) who manage the functions of the 
Committee (as detailed within the Constitution of the Council- also see the 
how we do it section below).  The meeting dates and report deadline dates 
are as follows:  

Name of Committee Final Reports Deadline
Agenda Publication 
Deadline

Date of meeting

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 7th June, 2019 Monday, 10th June, 2019 Tuesday, 18th June, 2019

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 11th July, 2019 Monday, 15th July, 2019 Tuesday, 23rd July, 2019

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Wednesday, 16th October, 2019 Friday, 18th October, 2019

Monday, 28th October, 

2019

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 30th December, 2019 Friday, 2nd January, 2020

Monday, 13th January, 

2020

Budget Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 30th January, 2020 Monday, 3rd February, 2020

Tuesday, 11th February, 

2020

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Wednesday, 12th March, 2020 Friday, 16th March, 2020 Tuesday, 24th March, 2020

What we do

The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of 
undertaking policy and budget development reviews as well as 
questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the 
Executive, Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior Officers. The Committee’s 
work is also supported by the study groups it commissions and monitors. 

How we do it

The functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are:

 Develop a work programme detailing the objectives, timetable and 
methodology.

 Responsible Committee for scrutiny of Townships generally; corporate 
service development and delivery; for scrutiny of partnerships or key 
contractors (e.g. Agilysis); corporate performance monitoring; 

Page 139

Agenda Item 11



corporate financial monitoring and the annual budget development 
consultation, and for overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and 
Directors.

 Respond to consultation by Cabinet on relevant policy development 
and the annual budget proposals.

 Scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other 
appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Directorate Plans, 
where appropriate.

 Scrutinise in-year budget performance.
 Instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service 

performance.
 Scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by 

external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee).
 Review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the 

Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the 
Council.

 Receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives 
on outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the 
Council, where appropriate.

 Commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to 
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where 
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from 
such studies and reviews.

 Consider annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy (Part 4E - 
Constitution of the Council).

Page 140



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – MEETINGS IN 
2019/20

18th June 2019

23rd July 2019

Work Programme 
Directorate Plans 2019-2020
Corporate Plan (2020 - 2023)
Employment Equality Report 2018/19 
Finance Update Report 2019/20
Budget 2020/21 To 2022/23 Guidelines, 
Timetable And Public Engagement
Health Related Absence Reporting
Township Funds Review

28th October 2019

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Local Government Ombudsman:  
Annual Review 2018/19

Performance monitoring and 
management

Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation.

Financial scrutiny

Corporate Complaints report
Schools Outturn
Fees and Charges

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2018/19

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2018/19)
 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance management and 
monitoring

Revenue Finance Outturn Report 
2018/19 

Financial scrutiny

Capital Finance Outturn Report 2018/19 Financial scrutiny
Savings outturn Report 2018/19 Financial scrutiny
Collection Fund Outturn Report 2018/19 Financial scrutiny

Page 141



13th January 2020

Work Programme 2019/20 To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Collection Fund 2019/20 Performance monitoring and 

management
Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation. Including savings, Budget 
Preparation and Insurance.

Financial scrutiny

Insurance Claims Report 2018/1 Financial scrutiny

OD Strategy
Workforce Wellbeing

11th February 2020 (Budget Scrutiny meeting)

24th March 2020

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Draft Joint Equalities, Diversity and 
Inclusion Strategy

Performance monitoring and 
management

Corporate Complaints Performance monitoring and 
management

Township Plan 2020 - 2022 Performance monitoring and 

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
BAU – Short Task Group before the 
start of the meeting.
Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation. Including;

 Council Tax
 Medium Term Financial Strategy
 Revenue and Capital Budgets 

and Council Tax 2019/20  
Robustness of the budget

 Detail on Children’s budget

Budget development

Treasury Management Strategy Budget Scrutiny
Corporate Debt Strategy Budget Scrutiny
Joint Equalities Strategy
3rd Quarter 201920: Directorate Plan 
Update

Performance monitoring and 
management

Page 142



management
Health Related Absence – Quarters 1 
and 2 - 2019/2020

Performance monitoring and 
management

Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation

Financial scrutiny

Other items to be assigned a meeting

Agilysis report plus visit Members to decide at February 
meeting if keep on work 
Programme

Digital Strategy Only If significant changes from 
previous version

Contact Centre Members to decide at February 
meeting if keep on work 
Programme

PSR – Public Sector Reform Members to decide at February 
meeting if keep on work 
Programme

Artificial Intelligence in business 
processes (R19020)
Commercial Development June/July 2020

Page 143


	Agenda
	6 Draft Joint Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy
	Appendix 1 Joint EDI Strategy Final
	Appendix 2  Joint EDI Strategy Engagement and Consultation Report

	7 1st  & 2nd Quarter Corporate Complaints
	Append. 1 for 1st  & 2nd Quarter Corporate Complaints

	8 Townships Plan 2020-2022
	Appendix A - Townships Plan 2020-2022

	9 Health Related Absence Q1 & Q2 2019/2020
	10 Finance Update Report P10
	11 Work Programme 2019/2020



